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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in
which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that
it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by The Stock Exchange. GEM-
Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors
should note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of WLS Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to WLS Holdings Limited. The
directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: i. the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; ii. there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading, and iii. all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and
careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Our Mission

“Circle and Square” Concept

In this intensely competitive world, the winners are those who take
the initiative to build a solid foundation before dedicating efforts on
self-improvement and enhancing business efficiencies.

WLS Holdings Limited ("WLS' or the ‘Company’), with excellent
business acumen, takes a proactive stance on incorporating the ‘Circle
and Square’ concept into its corporate mission. The underlying
meaning of having a ‘Circle’ encompassing a square symbolises the
importance of offering smooth services and flexibility to external
parties, and internally, the attention to details.

Cautiousness and striving after perfection are equally important. That
is why we shall adhere unwaveringly to our principle of perpetual
emphasis and continuous improvement on ‘Safety, Quality and
Efficiency’.

WLS practises and preaches the theory of ‘Circle and Square’ by
integrating flexibility into every step of its operations as well as abiding
by every legal regulation and restriction.
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Financial Highlights

BEONAZ=+TBHLUERFE Financial Year Ended 30 April
—EZTHF —EETMEF
FET FET
(E7)
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)

=% Turnover 176,393 135,237 146,474

BB A B (B18) Profit (loss) before taxation 7,400 (9,681) 2,391

REZ &N (BE)

R Net profit (loss) for the year 6,080 (8,574) 4,155
-]
BRAaF (EE) Earnings (loss) per share
(&AL (HK cent) 1.33 (1.87) 0.91

Hiat Notes:

. AR -ZEE—F+ A+ =HEHESH 1. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23 July 2001 and
MKy  TH=-FEE—F+—A=1H became the holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 23
RRZERER ([ERER])TECEHE November 2001 as a result of the Group Reorganisation as set out in the
IR =—EE—F+—A=-+=HKABEH Company’s Prospectus dated 30 November 2001 (the “Prospectus”).

KAEEZ RFZERAE] -

2. RIRMWEB SN AR M2 EESER 2 The 2004 consolidated results shown above have been restated, following the

F405E R B B B IE 2 BT 2 7 B adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standard 40 Issued by the Institute of Certified
% FI2 —FEMFELEEEEDS TES - Public Accountants and the corresponding adjustment in respect of the deferred tax
ZET=FHUAZHRAM IR FES - impact. The comparative information for 2003 or before has not been restated.
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Not only was WLS the first Hong Kong

scaffolding company granted the patent

right for our innovative MBMSS by the Hong
Kong Intellectual Property Department, but it was
also granted a U.K. patent by the UK Patent
Office in July 2001,

It is my great pleasure to present this year's annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”). In tandem with the strong rebound of the Hong
Kong economy, our Group also experienced a favourable turnaround in

business performance during the year ended 30 April 2005.

During the period under review, the turnover of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$176,393,000, representing an increase of about 30% as
compared with a turnover of approximately HK$135,237,000 of the preceding
year. Profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 30 April 2005
amounted to approximately HK$6,080,000 as compared against a loss

attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$8,574,000 of last year.

Our Group achieved favourable operating results amidst signs of strong
economic recovery and a much more positive investment climate during the
reporting period. Faced with an upsurge in construction activities, both locally
and in Macau, our Group is able to capitalise on such buoyant market
conditions to secure a number of large construction projects whilst maintaining

our prominent position as the market leader in the scaffolding industry.

The scaffolding division of the Group received a huge increase in the number
of invitations to tender for works projects. Due to such increased opportunities,
competition is less keen thereby enabling our profit margins to rebound
despite the downward trend of the previous years. Furthermore, a new works
contract awarded to the Group for the provision of climbing scaffold services
had commenced and its computer-controlled mechanical features constituted
a strong marketing point and we are extremely optimistic of the market

potential of this climbing scaffold product.
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Chairman’s Statement

At the same time, our Group maintained its business strategy of diversification
into other trades related to the construction industry. We participated in large-
scale theme park construction projects such as the Hong Kong Disneyland by
the provision of management contracting services and achieved distinguished
results. Moreover, by doing so, we have established our reputation as a
specialist in providing Glass Reinforced Cement/Glass Reinforced Plastic (GRC/
GRP) themed cladding services which would considerably enhance our
opportunity to be awarded similar works projects in other theme park projects.
Recently, our Group secured two works projects of substantial sizes in the
provision of GRC/GRP themed cladding to the Noah’s Ark in Island Park, Ma

Wan and to the Ngau Tam Mei residential development in Yuen Long.

During the year under review, the Group also achieved a significant increase in
business turnover in the supply and installation of false ceilings, the provision
of fitting out services and the supply and installation of parapet railings,
permanent gondolas and access equipment. As a matter of fact, we have
diversified into the role of being the provider of a wide spectrum of
construction-related products as well as scaffolding services to our broad

network of customers.

Concurrently, the marketing efforts to promote our business in Macau achieved
notable success. The usage of our Metal-Bamboo Matrix System Scaffolding
(MBMSS) in the Las Vegas Sands Macau Project and the provision of bamboo
scaffolding services to Hoi Ming Koi in Macau received very positive feedbacks
from our customers. This will definitely consummate the job references of the
Group in Macau and poise it in an advantageous position to participate in the
massive construction and infrastructure development projects in Macau in

future.

In addition, the Group maintained its track record of constantly introducing new
ingenious products to the market. The second generation metal H-Frame
scaffold was introduced to the Kowloon Motor Bus Depot Development with
loud acclaim from the main contractor. Furthermore, we are the only candidate
with the capability to tender for the supply, installation and maintenance of 11
numbers of 5 different types of access equipment to Stonecutters Bridge.
Logically, we succeeded in being awarded this contract which vastly enhanced
our reputation as a specialist contractor in the field of access equipment and

building maintenance unit services provider.

—ZTRFFHR | Annual Report 2005 5
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Chairman’s Statement

TAERRESE([EEg)) - BH2EET On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board"), | would like to thank all our

R T 5 I SRR B ER B 2 B K A5 ) TN LR staff for their continuous hard work, unstinting loyalty and dedication whether
WMRA o FENBREBRIAHRE - NAREERRER the economic conditions are favourable or particularly difficult. As reported
EZFEEHARLPBRE - BEARFSMLE earlier, the business performance of the Company has bottomed out and we
TZXFEEHMEA - MEERERXHM - experienced a significant turnaround last year. With the continued tireless
e RmEsEE  AABGLRFAEEZ support and unfaltering devotion of every staff within the Company together
EBE BB RUEA - with the constant vigilance of our management which is constantly looking for

untapped market opportunities, | am confident that the operating results of the

Group will continue to improve in the coming year.

29295 So Yu Shing
TE Chairman
—ETRF+LA-THH 25 July 2005

6 ERZRAR~AT | WLS Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

E¥ROERRE BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

EHKEE Business Review

RZETRAFNA=FTHLFERN  FEEZE For the year ended 30 April 2005, the turnover of the Group amounted to
FFA /176393,0008 7T * M EFE 2 EHEFL approximately HK$176,393,000, representing an increase of about 30% as
135,237,000 7T EFA#)30% c RZZTZRHFMA compared with a turnover of approximately HK$135,237,000 of the preceding
= THIEFEA - BREEMNEFEL %6080,000/%8 year. Profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 30 April 2005 was
7T i R 2 AR R FE AL 518 A4 /8,574,000 approximately HK$6,080,000 as compared against a loss attributable to

JT ° shareholders of approximately HK$8,574,000 last year.
EF BELELRBAERARYDER - FE During the past year, the Hong Kong economy displayed notable and
TEERMEMSHBERERBER  UARKRE significant recovery. As a matter of fact, the retail industry and the real estate
RATFRIEEF o (RN MRE T B AL - market demonstrated a sizeable boom and the investment climate was
REBNERKE  ESEZMRAIRGNLFE particularly positive. The Group, in its position as the market leader of the
B2 2 BRABRE I - AR AR 2 EE scaffolding industry, fully took advantage of it and secured an increased
AEEMBETIBRMEE - BERMALETH number of scaffolding works contracts. Continuous stringent cost-reducing
AEESME - measures were taken to streamline the operations of the Group and strenuous
efforts were made by staff at all levels of operations to ensure top level of
efficiency was attained.
B AEBBEEHETETERTSS#ERINE Concurrently, the Group maintained its business policy of constantly introducing
mZEBR AEE2E _KREBHIMRE new innovative products to the market. The second generation metal H-Frame

BMARBEUNRNEZTRBZ NEEHEEMS scaffolding was adopted by the main contractor at the Kowloon Motor Bus
A ERARARGULENEMEGRERH Depot development site in Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon. This is the first time that this
TR BRNEEMRAGHESIHE  BLER new scaffolding product designed by the Company was used in Hong Kong

SNELSEHR - RIS I AT R o NEE S EE and it received immensely positive feedback for the savings in labour cost and
ImSEE  STSERZHRBULEARDOZE enhanced safety it facilitates as well as the improved outlook it poses.
“REBHAME  MASEEREREE LM Continuous marketing efforts would be exerted to widen the usage of this
EREZEMBEBERZTHEN - ingenious second generation metal H-Frame scaffolding, and the management

of the Group is confident that this product of impeccable quality has enormous
market potentials.

8 ERZRAR~AT | WLS Holdings Limited
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M SRR - BB EE R R 25,000,000
B2 IIRAY  BEMMABRT - HE &

In regard to the provision of scaffolding services for renovation purposes, the
Group secured 4 new works contracts in this sector including the project for
the renovation of 16 blocks of residential buildings in Amoy Gardens.
Moreover, a new works contract for the provision of climbing scaffold services
had commenced and the feedback from the main contractor was overwhelmingly
positive. Such encouraging response definitely confirmed the success of the
Group in developing a market for climbing scaffold thus resulting in an increase
in the Group's ability to offer a wider range of scaffolding products to its
customers.

In addition, the Group participated in the Hong Kong Disneyland Project in the
two on-going packaged deals comprising construction-related works as well as
providing scaffolding services to one of its featured structures. The involvement
of the Group in rendering service to massive theme park projects such as the
Hong Kong Disneyland will undoubtedly enhance the image and goodwill of
the Group. Apart from furnishing the Group with a source of constant and
stable revenue, we gained invaluable experience and refined our expertise in
the field of Glass Reinforced Cement/Glass Reinforced Plastic(GRC/GRP)
themed cladding and the provision of management contracting service to
theme park projects.

With respect to the suspended ceiling and fitting out division, the Group was
awarded a total of 20 works contracts during the period under review. The fine
quality of the services rendered by this division and the job references it
acquired consolidated the position of the Group in securing a bridgehead in
this field. The management of the Group is of the opinion that the market
potential of the supply and installation of suspended ceiling and the provision
of fitting out services is very substantial.

The diversification strategy of the Group to develop the gondola and access

equipment market bore fruit as it secured a works contract with a value
exceeding HK$25 million for the design, supply, installation and maintenance

—ZTRFFHR | Annual Report 2005 9
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of permanent gondolas and access equipment for the Stonecutters Bridge. Its
duration would last for 3 years thus ensuring a constant stream of business
revenue to the Group. In addition, our Group is the only candidate with the
capability to bid for all the 5 different types of access equipment available for
tender in the Stonecutters Bridge Project. The award of such a contract of
significant size will certainly enhance the image and reputation of the Group in
the field of building maintenance units and access equipment. Moreover,
another contract for the supply and installation of parapet railings for Nam Wan
Tunnel was secured. At the same time, the Group's fleet of temporary gondolas
enjoyed a high percentage of utilisation during most part of the period under

review.

During the year ended 30 April 2005, the international division continued its
marketing efforts to develop and penetrate into the Macau market. The Group
successfully completed its erection and dismantlement of Metal-Bamboo
Matrix System Scaffolding in the Las Vegas Sands Macau and received wide
acclaim from the main contractor. Besides, works for the provision of
scaffolding services to Hoi Ming Koi progressed according to schedule.

In respect of the research and development division, patents for both the
design and utility models of our unique scaffolding coupler was granted by the
People’s Republic of China. The design of the third generation of metal
scaffolding was further improved and the perfected product was manufactured
for testing and further fine-tuning. Research efforts and resources continued to
be deployed to research and development activities with the objective of
constantly introducing new and innovative products to the market to maintain
the Group's position as a market leader of the industry.

Business Outlook

At present, the Hong Kong economy is on the track of a forceful rebound.
Strong consumer spending, on the back of rising asset prices coupled with a
buoyant tourism sector sparked by the Mainland Individual Visit Scheme,
contributed to the fast economic recovery in the past year. The implementation
of the two stages of Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (the "CEPA")
and the strong Chinese yuan (renminbi) further bolster consumer confidence

and increase retail sales.

In line with the current bullish market sentiment, the Group has received a
considerable increase in the number of invitations to tender for works contracts
in all of its lines of business. Besides, the Group utilised the goodwill and
invaluable experience gained in its participation in the large-scale theme park
projects in Hong Kong to secure successfully two supply and maintenance
works contracts for GRC/GRP themed cladding, namely, the Noah's Ark in
Island Park in Ma Wan and the Ngau Tam Mei Development in Yuen Long. The
management of the Group is confident that it can further develop this market
by establishing itself as a specialist in the provision of GRC/GRP themed
cladding as well as management contracting services to similar theme park
projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In addition, the construction of numerous massive hotel and resort developments
in Macau with casinos and an array of entertainment facilities is under way.
This will certainly present ample business opportunities to the various lines of
business of the Group. At the same time, the Group is committed to pursuing
its research and development activities with a view to carving out a niche
market for the WLS brand of products.

In conclusion, the current positive economic climate, fuelled by the regain and
upsurge of consuming power and rising property prices, provides a favourable
business environment and presents abundant opportunities for the Group to
continue on its track of profitability. The management of the Group is confident
that, with the unfailing dedication and relentless support of our staff at all
levels, we will continue to produce positive results in the forthcoming year.

Project Portfolio (As at 30 April 2005)
Hong Kong

e The Arch

e Olympic Station Site D

° Kowloon Motor Bus Depot

e Airport Express Kowloon Station (Phase 6 Tower 21)
o D.D. 104 & 105 in Ngau Tam Mei, Yuen Long

o Park Island (Phase 5)

e Chelsea Court

o La Place de Victoria

e Tsuen Wan 353 (Phase 3)

o Bel Air Garden (Phase 3)

e The Beverly Hills

o K.M.L. 102 in Ma Tau Kok (South Gas Plant Site)

®  96-116 Hollywood Road

e 253-265 Queen’s Road Central

o TW.T.L. No. 395 in Area 40, Route Twisk, Tsuen Wan
o Four Seasons Hotel

e Tung Chung Hotel Development

e Hotel Development in K.I.L. 11110

o Hotel Development in K.I.L. 11103

° KCRC Lok Ma Chau Terminus

e Prince of Wales Hospital

e Hong Kong University of Science & Technology Enterprise Centre
e English Foundation Schools in Ma On Shan

° Amoy Gardens Renovation

o Kiu Fai Mansion Renovation

Macau

. Las Vegas Sands Macau
. Hoi Ming Koi

—ZTRFFHR | Annual Report 2005
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. So Yu Shing (8 % F{) , aged 53, is the chairman of the
Group. Mr. So Yu Shing has served in the Labour Department
of the Government before joining the Group on 17
September 1991. He holds a bachelor of arts degree from
the University of Hong Kong and a master of science degree
in engineering business management from the Warwick

University of the United Kingdom.

Mr. So has also acquired the Registered Safety Officer
qualification. He is a prospective candidate of a doctorate
degree in the building and construction at the City University
of Hong Kong.

Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca (B # #), aged 50, is an
executive Director of the Company and the spouse of Mr. So
Yu Shing. Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca has been actively
involved in the management of the Group for over 12 years.
She was engaged in the teaching profession for over 18 years

before joining the Group on 9 March 1988.

Mr. Ip Ping Hong, Antony (¥ ¥ &), aged 57, is an
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ip holds a B.Sc (Hon)
degree in Building Economics and Measurement and was
elected Fellow membership of the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors, Fellow Membership of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, Hong Kong Registered Professional Surveyors, and
the Associate membership of the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators. Mr. Ip started his career in the United Kingdom in
the specialized field of quantity surveying in 1970, having
worked for quantity surveying consultancies and served in the
UK Birmingham City Council and the UK Department of
Environment — Property Services Agency prior to returning to
Hong Kong in 1981. Mr. Ip has since held senior position in
one of Hong Kong's largest property developers for 17 years
and subsequently served the construction industry for 4 years
as the Assistant Director for the Construction Industry Training
Authority for vocational and safety trainings. Mr. Ip has an
overall managerial experience of over 30 years in the building
and construction industry and was appointed as the executive

Director of the Company on 2 July 2004.
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Mr. Woo Siu Lun (2 JEB§) , aged 50, is an executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Woo has over 27 years of
experience in various industries holding senior executive
positions. He was a director and senior partner of Euroair
Equipments Supplies Limited, a local engineering firm
specialising in air-conditioning equipment supply and he has
held an executive position in Liu Chong Hing Bank Limited for
12 years before joining the Group on 1 November 1997. Mr.
Woo holds a bachelor of social sciences degree from the
University of Hong Kong. He is also an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and has
been a qualified corporate secretary in Hong Kong for over

20 years.

Mr. Kong Kam Wang CT $8 %) , aged 48, is an executive
Director of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience
in the banking industry and has held senior management
positions specialising in corporate banking as well as retail
banking in a number of banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Before joining the Company in March 2002 and being
appointed as an executive Director of the Company in June
2002, Mr. Kong was engaged as Vice President and Zone
Manager of First Pacific Bank Limited. In 1994, Mr. Kong was
assigned by First Pacific Bank Limited as representative to set
up a Shenzhen representative office in the PRC. During that
period, Mr. Kong stationed in the Shenzhen representative
office to establish close relationship with various Chinese
Government bureaus and other foreign financial institutions.
Mr. Kong graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1981 with an honours bachelor degree in Business
Management. Mr. Kong also obtained an executive master of
business administration degree ("EMBA") from the Chinese

University of Hong Kong.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Sritawat Kitipornchai (B % JlE) , aged 60, is a Chair
Professor of Building and Construction at the City University
of Hong Kong. He holds a bachelor of engineering degree
with first class honours from Monash University and a
doctorate degree from the University of Sydney. Dr. Kitipornchai
has a wide range of teaching, research and consulting
experience in structural engineering for over 29 years;
particularly in the steel structures area. He is recognised as a
world expert in nonlinear analysis of steel structures. Dr.
Kitipornchai is a recipient of several awards including an
excellence teaching award and a research award for the paper
in Engineering Structures journal. Dr. Kitipornchai has been
the Regional Editor of the internationally well-known
Engineering Structures journal since 1993 and is a member
of editorial boards of a number of other journals. He has
published 6 books and over 200 scientific journal papers and
is also the holder of 2 international patents. Dr. Kitipornchai
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
9 November 2001.

Mr. Yeung Po Chin (# %5 A1) , aged 54, holds a bachelor of
arts degree from the University of Hong Kong. He is a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong and has been admitted as a
solicitor in England and Wales and as a barrister and solicitor
in Australia (ACT). Mr. Yeung has extensive experience in the
legal profession, and has been a legal advisor to a number of
associations, an executive-committee member of various
social clubs and the Manager-Treasurer of Hong Kong
University Alumni Association Racing Syndicate. Mr. Yeung is

now a solicitor at T. L. Ip & Co.

Mr. Lam Kwok Wing (# B &) , FHKSA, FC.CA, B.Soc.Sc,
aged 51, is a qualified accountant and he was also appointed
as a member of the audit committee of the Company with
effect from 11 August 2004. He graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor of social sciences
degree and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants and Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.
He is the sole proprietor of K. W. Lam & Co., Certified Public
Accountants and has over 28 years of experience in auditing,

accounting and taxation.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Hui Tung Wah (FF#R %), aged 51, holds a Bachelor
Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master Degree in Business Administration from the
Brunel University in the United Kingdom. Mr. Hui was an
executive director of Omnicorp Limited from July 2001 to
May 2003 and rejoined it as deputy chief executive officer
from 1 May 2005, having served for 2 years as senior vice
president of Sino-Forest Corporation, a Toronto-listed company.
On 5 July 2005, Mr. Hui was appointed as managing director
and chief executive officer of Omnicorp Limited. He comes
from a strong financial and general management background
having spent about 29 years working in senior management
positions of major international and local banks, and companies
in Hong Kong, Australia and Canada. He is a seasoned
executive and has extensive management experience. He is
currently a non-executive director of Café de Coral Holdings
Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward (% % #8) , aged 24, is a director
of Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company which carries out all the
scaffolding works contracts of the Company. He graduated
from Oxford Brookes University in the United Kingdom with a
bachelor of science degree. He also holds a master of science
degree in Engineering Business Management from the

University of Warwick in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Fu Chi Cheung (&%), aged 54, is the general
manager of the Scaffolding Division of the Company. He
joined the Group in April 1988 and has been in charge of the
contract and quantity surveying department of the Company
for over 20 years. He graduated from a university in Shanghai.
Mr. Fu also had experience in the planning, design and

management of a number of engineering projects in the PRC.
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Ms. Chan Man Yu, Maggie (BR &%) is the financial controller
of the Company and qualified accountant of the Group. She
is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and associate member of the
Association of International Accountants. Ms. Chan graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Accountancy. Prior to joining the group in
December 2004, she had worked for an international

accounting firm for 8 years.

Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (3R f##) , aged 51, is a manager of
the Gondola Division and responsible for the electrical and
mechanical (“E&M") projects. He holds a Master of Science
degree in engineering business management from the
University of Warwick in the United Kingdom. He is a
registered professional engineer and is a member of The
Institution of Mechanical Engineers and The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers. Before joining the group, he worked
for The Jardine Engineering Corporation for 15 years. He has
extensive experience in E&M engineering works and the local
construction industry, specialising in project management,
engineering design work, technical support and construction

supervision.

Mr. Yau Siu Kwong (E JK ), aged 33, is an assistant
manager of the Company. He joined the Group in July 1997
and is responsible for R&D and project management. He
holds a bachelor of science degree from the University of
Alberta, Canada and a master of science degree in
environmental management from the University of London,
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine. He is
a member of the Institute of Environmental Management and

Assessment.

Ms. Luk Man Nar, Daisy (B £ ) is a personnel and
administration manager of the Company. She worked with
Gammon Construction Limited for 13 years before joining the
Company in December 1995. Ms. Luk holds a diploma in
administrative management from the Institute of Administrative
Management of the United Kingdom and a certificate in
personnel management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of

Human Resource Management.



EEkEREEEEN

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

BXE % 4%  BEng MSc, CEng, MIStructE,
MHKIERRPE * =+ =58 * RARAAIEE
TT2Eh - BASEAN —ZEERELAMBA
REE - 2RI GHEEMAREZENAE
FEEIE  ELARAREBEIRELR
A EERANERLHEA TFEIERL
B FHATARIRBE2L RBEETS

fir o

BEBRE =+ N\ AX2A SR
B £ 80 o % F5 A 7B University of Bath
W REERWBELT SN - BEAE
REBRFPBEARIER (BERLEE -
SRAK  BHEREEHERER) AHE
BREER T NFER -

BERNEE =+ 2K ARFRRKE
RGP RIAE KR - BRET X
JIRBBREFREE R - RIRIAA
EERERASFENEZER - ARLEE
TEZ=F)\AMALRER  EERRE
Rt - EREMHREEZREHE -

Mr. Kwan Ka Fu, Gary (B8R &) , BEng, MSc, CEng, MIStructE,
MHKIE and RPE, aged 33, is a structural engineer of the
company. Mr. Kwan has 10 years of experience in the design,
construction, supervision and contract administration of civil
and structural engineering projects before joining the Group
in July 2005. He holds a degree of bachelor and a master

degree of science.

Mr. Kwong Chi Kin (BB B ) , aged 38, is a senior quantity
surveyor of the Company. He holds a master of science
degree in construction management from the University of
Bath in the United Kingdom. Mr. Kwong has 18 years’
experience in contract administration of large scale projects in
Hong Kong and the PRC including housing estate development,

highway, railway and power plant construction.

Mr. Lui Chun Man, Ronald (& £ ) , aged 32, is a senior
project manager of the Suspended Ceilings and Fitting-out
Services Division of the Company. He has obtained an
Advanced Certificate of Management from the Construction
Industry Training Authority and has extensive experience of
over 8 years in site project management. Mr. Lui joined the
Group in August 2003 and his expertise is in the field of false

ceiling, interior decoration and fitting-out services.
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EFEMAREARFBE_STAFOA=T The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
HIEFREZFRESEZMBERE - of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2005.

FTEXK PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

AR R—EREAERAR - EXEMBE AR - The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
B Nm RAREGEE 2 EE S B TIEN IS principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are set out in
wEMEI6 17K 18 ¢ notes 16, 17 and 18 to the financial statements, respectively.
Frakob RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
AEEBZE_TTERFHUA=TRHIEFEES The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2005 are set out in the
BRAFRE29H RS WaEK - consolidated income statement on page 29.

EFEEEANBE_ZTERFHAZ=TRHILEFE The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK0.50 cent per
AT R ERRR B B AR0.50/8(L (B2 — =24 m A share for the year ended 30 April 2005 (year ended 30 April 2004: Nil). The
ZETBELEFE &)  REBER-_ZEZTAFNA dividend will be payable on 8 September 2005 to shareholders whose names
NBERNTRZZZRENA=TBRIEKQF appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 30 August 2005. The
BEAMZER - BRREMER =—ZZHFN\RA Register of Members will be closed between 26 August 2005 and 30 August
—t+ARBEZZZERFNAZ+TH (BEERM 2005 (both dates inclusive) during which no transfer of the Company's shares
B EEHBRFFE BHEITEEELRRAZ will be effected. To qualify for the aforesaid final dividend, all completed
ffp - BREAEERKE EARBRE - FAEEE transfer forms, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
EZEBRRBERBERELER _ZTHFN with Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar Tengis Limited at Ground
AZ+TRRATFOR=+HARERRE 2 KH Floor, BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong by
BEFETLEENIRERRBIRLOF - it AEE 4:30 p.m. on 25 August 2005.

TS T ITE565 R SRATHBER O o

REWZE INVESTMENT PROPERTY

REBZREMEN_TTRFHNA=THER The investment property of the Group was revalued on 30 April 2005, as set

BRAFBEIEHRIEREWF13 - AFEEEM out in note 13 to the financial statements. The increase in fair value, which

800,000/ 7T * B Rt AR E R - amounted to HK$800,000, has been credited to consolidated income
statement.

ME - MENRRZRE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AEBZ M REBFER_ZZRAFEOA=1H The Group's land and buildings were revalued at 30 April 2005. The
Bl o EHEHENIREE, 216,000/ L& - revaluation resulted in a surplus over book values amounting to HK$1,216,000,
EHRSHETARANER - AEEYME - BRE which has been credited to consolidated income statement. Other movements
REHERFER 2 EMEEFTE - SRMBHREM in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out

R in note 14 to the financial statements.

] 8 ERZEREMRAT | WLS Holdings Limited
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R RESERVES

FEBRARRANFRZHEREED D BIPIHNE
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Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 33 and in

note 30 to the financial statements, respectively.
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The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report

are.
Executive directors

Mr. So Yu Shing (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca

Mr. Woo Siu Lun

Mr. Kong Kam Wang

Mr. Ip Ping Hong, Antony
(appointed on 2 July 2004)

Mr. Lau Wan Pui, Joseph
(resigned on 1 July 2004)

Non-executive director

Mr. Hui Tung Wah
(appointed on 11 August 2004)

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Sritawat Kitipornchai
Mr. Yeung Po Chin
Mr. Lam Kwok Wing
(appointed on 11 August 2004)

In accordance with Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Woo Siu Lun, Mr. Kong Kam Wang, Mr. Hui Tung Wah and Mr. Lam Kwok
Wing retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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All the executive directors of the Company have each entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years. All the above-
mentioned service contracts are continuous until terminated by either party
giving to the other not less than three months' notice in writing, or by payment

of three months' salary in lieu of such notice.

The non-executive directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
have no fixed term of office but are subject to the provision of retirement and

rotation of directors under the Articles of Association of the Company.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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At 30 April 2005, the interests of the directors and their associates of the
Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (the “SFQO")) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
Growth Enterprises Market (the “GEM Listing Rules”) to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

BREGBZHE Long positions in shares
1) kr# (1) Shares

FRHFEBERY HERRAFE
Number of ordinary shares held BITRAZED L
8 AR RixER Percentage of the
Personal Family issued share capital
BEEnA Name of director interest interest of the Company
Boak kA& Mr. So Yu Shing 242,215,000 74,225,000 69.0%
RimE Lt Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 74,225,000 242,215,000 69.0%
KB A& Mr. Woo Siu Lun 19,260,000 - 4200
L8R 5 A Mr. Kong Kam Wang - 700,000 0.2%

BB EREAREEZETF -

Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca is the wife of Mr. So Yu Shing.

—ZTRFFHR | Annual Report 2005 2 ]
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(2) Share options

Details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company are set out

in note 28 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses details of movements in respect of the

Company's share options during the year:

R-ZENF R-BELF
TA-H BA=t+H
HARTE REAZH i R AT B2
TRER(ERMRAEHEER) %%  Outstanding Cancelled  Outstanding
E3pns REAH Exercisable period Exercise at during at
Name of director ~ Date granted (both dates inclusive) price 1.5.2004 theyear ~ 30.4.2005
BT
HK$
AR KL “EECFRAACT-R B-EE=FRA-TNA 0381 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
Mr. So Yu Shing 21 May 2002 E_ZTNFRA-TLA
28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
—EBRNE-FEH H-ZERE-A+-H 0.094 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
5 February 2004 ZF-_Z-——%-A+-H
12 February 2005 to 11 February 2011
B+ “EE-FAA-t+-H MHMZZE=FRA=-TNA 0.381 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, 21 May 2002 EZEENFRA-TEAE
Rebecca 28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
—ETNE-AAA B-EERF-A+=H 0.094 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
5 February 2004 Z-Z——%ZA+-H
12 February 2005 to 11 February 2011
kB EE “EECFRAACT-R B-EE=FRA-TNA 0381 4,500,000 - 4500000
Mr. Woo Siu Lun 21 May 2002 EZZTAFRAA-TLAE
28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
“ZEME-AAA H-ETR4-A+=H 0094 100,000 - 100,000
5 February 2004 Z-_Z——%-A+-H
12 February 2005 to 11 February 2011
IHREFE “EE-FAA-t+-H MHMZZE=FRA-TNA 0.381 4,500,000 4,500,000
Mr. Kong Kam Wang 21 May 2002 Z_ZTNFRAZTLE
28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
“ZRNE-ATA B-ZERF-_A+-H 0.094 300,000 - 300,000

5 February 2004
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R-ZENF R=-Z2HF
BA—-H B=+H
MARTHE REREH OB YR
TRBR(EEMREREER) f7#f8  Outstanding  Cancelled Outstanding
Espng REAH Exercisable period Exercise at during at
Name of director ~ Date granted (both dates inclusive) price 1.5.2004 theyear ~ 30.4.2005
Ep
HK$
AnEEaE —ZTNF-AAHA B-ZTRF-A+=H 0.094 2,000,000 (2,000,000) -
Mr. Lau Wan Pui, 5 February 2004 Z-Z——FZA+-H
Joseph 12 February 2005 to 11 February 2011
29,400,000 (2,000,000)  27400,000
F N MR o i AR No options were granted during the year.
BRENFTEBEEN  RRARESIHEZ Save as disclosed above, none of directors or their associates of the
BMEATR_ZTRAFHA=THHER Company, had any interests or short positions in shares, underlying
RRATSEEFAEREEZ kD - EREK shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations at
PREFFPHEESTMREIAE - 30 April 2005.
BEROIEZ ZRZH ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES O
DEBENTURES
WIESPIRGD RIEIRE 2 o] —EIPTHEEE N - Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and
P F AR A AR A RIS CE MY B A R R R SZ4E Share Options”, at no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries

Az - MEAAFESIEBEARNAR KA a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
AEMEABBROIELFMER  EFHE benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
FZBBE8A T 2 FRITEERRERA A Company or any other body corporate, and none of the directors or their
EHZENFIENFRITEZSER - spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the

securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

FERRE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

B BT R TE S 2R - ARRIREE Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the
FREERPIEIZ6GEMTE 2 EFZRRELM register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
FIsE  BMATR -_ZZRFMA=THER Section 336 of the SFO disclosed no person as having a notifiable interest or
RABBITRAFHEBEATHRECERIAER - short position in the issued share capital of the Company at 30 April 2005.
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EENBEREN 2R DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

RARISEMBARBEI LAAREENES No contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a

HEESHEABERAETMRNFRIFRNDAE party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether

M2 EREL - directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

FTEXFRMEER MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

BE-_ZTZRFUNA=THILFE  ~EEXE For the year ended 30 April 2005, the aggregate amount of turnover

TREFPZEXRBHREAEHEE X RFL68% - attributable to the Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately

MARBEATF 2 € EBIEAEBEEBTEY 68% of the Group's total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group's

37% largest customer accounted for approximately 37% of the Group’s total
turnover.

REBTRHERGE RN EBRBERED30% - The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest

suppliers were less than 30% of the total purchase.

FA - RNAREMES  FBFZBHBEATIRE At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
(BESMAEE RNDARASNA F) RAEKE shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
EREPHBELMER - more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the

Group's five largest customers.

FEEREBALRS CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSAC

BRAATRZGHBHARM B ®RKRITI8 FR - Details of related party transactions are set out in note 38 to the financial
AEBE-HE2EMBARE] —HBAERS - statements. During the year, the Company and one of its wholly owned
MERTTIR L= iE 404,589,000/ 7T 2 (¥R » 1 subsidiaries had entered the connected transaction by providing corporate

REETIRERAR (DER]) BER—REBTEE guarantees to the extent of HK$4,589,000 to banks to secure general banking
MEZER - ARANR_ZZRFOA=1THE facilities granted to Sinogain Engineering Limited (“Sinogain”), which is 70%
BEETOWED  R_TTRAFMA=1H & owned by the Company at 30 April 2005. At 30 April 2005, the facilities of
EHA 2 EEF#4,589,0008 7T - REBERHE HK$4,589,000 was only utilised by Sinogain Engineering Limited. The
ERAEERRBEHTEEZE B ED - guarantees given by the Group were the only financial assistance given by

Sinogain’s shareholders to Sinogain.

24 ERZRAR~AT | WLS Holdings Limited



EEEHRES

Directors’ Report

EBrLEERE PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

|

BEALNGEBERIFAESHEEE  MEEL There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles of
BERGR  ERARARARBRARRZ K Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to

RELL B e 1% S B ATH D - offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

- HE = B L K5 PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHA

RER  ARBISEEAMEARMERE  H During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

EHBELOARNBER EHES sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
NAEER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

eall

RAARIRBE_ZZERFHA=TRHILBEFE The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 April 2005 with the
N—BEEREIER LT RAIES34GEF 5450 corporate governance matters as set out in Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM
iz ABRIERER ° Listing Rules.

RAGIEREBFETNERRS  HKBH—ETE The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions

BB AR T AR BI85 5.48 E 5.6 715 FT L <7 RIFT 12 by directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings

EHETER c RARIEMABERIEHFES set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific

o FMBEEERACRBANEBFRRBRMNZIE enquiry of all directors, all directors confirmed they have complied with the

EFRREBEFLETERIHNERTED - required standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors adopted by the Company.

RIE A F AR E AR BISE5.0906 - & ALB L FEHTT The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
EFHEMARFZERFERRE  BRAKFA directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
BELER - ARRMEMEBIIFENTEER the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
BEIHM - executive directors are independent.
R COMPETING INTERESTS

EFNARREEERRAMSEEMZEHEA None of the directors or the management shareholders of the Company or any
T (EE R AIZR TR A B S (] B AR & of their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any

B MBI R F 2 55 - business which competed or might compete with the business of the Group.
= o

B DONATIONS

RER - RARVELZEE REMIBF 11,0008 7T © During the year, the Company made charitable and other donations which

amounted to HK$111,000.
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BEREES

EREECBE=RKE BUFATEZRE
B+ - 15 A1 eE RMBE &K EAL -

e

NER - BEREZEGARDRGARLIET TR

pil

BRARARZERFE - PHRFEMH
BERBUERER

2. BHAEBEZAMEZERFIELER
&

3. BEINAEREMEEL2EENEERTMG
MR BB 2 RE -

% 2B

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three members-Dr. Sritawat Kitipornchai, Mr.
Yeung Po Chin and Mr. Lam Kwok Wing, all of them are independent non-

executive directors.

During the year, the audit committee held five meetings and performed the

following duties:

1. reviewed and commented on the Company's draft annual, interim and

quarterly financial reports;

2. reviewed and commented on the Group's internal controls; and

3. met with the external auditors and participated in the reappointment and

assessment of the performance of the external auditors.

AUDITORS

|

ERXEHMIRBE_ZT_FOA=+tHL
FEEERDRZEERD - (22 « BIEMRTT &5
ARBE_ZT=FOA=+tHLFERRELE
EARDEZ EED -

Til

—HERBEBREARFNKEERZKRBF K
GLREUBHZERY « MR G5HETT

EEEEW
BROR R
3

—EERFELA-+HAH
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Messrs. RSM Nelson Wheeler acted as auditors of the Company for the year
ended 30 April 2002. Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu acted as the auditors
of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2003 and thereafter.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

On behalf of the Board

So Yu Shing

Chairman

25 July 2005
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Deloitte.
Ea)

BEEZRERAREZERR TO THE MEMBERS OF WLS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(RASHSFTMKZZBERAT) (incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

FEEMITERERTNE0E ZFESHERE We have audited the financial statements on pages 29 to 85 which have been

BUERBRMNZ @t RAPMREOMBRE prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

EENZEMM2EBERE RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECT!

AUDITORS

ERFEFEAAERBETEQNTHMBRE The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
ERUEZEZVHERRN  EFVREBERKASE statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements
BREBUR - which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting

policies are selected and applied consistently.

TINBEERKERESEC ZZERHBEEZ It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on
TENER  HRSUBHRRREBINER - those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
WAMR (FER—B88) IEH MRS - FRut 2 SN0 & accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
Hi B8 - BFWAHARE 2 A AER E A We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
ATAEEMEE - for the contents of this report.

SR ER BASIS OF OPINION

RITRZREB A PIAMEREELE We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards

TEZIE - ERHBEREAME T N SR issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit
BHREFAHBERIKBETEGANERE  LB2HE includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
AEEFERHEEZEV BRI EHOERG disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
Ry FFEE 2 Gt EREEs BRRH significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of
EEBEZARBANELERERL R WKREZ the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
ZEFTHEOR - appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently

applied and adequately disclosed.

RITREI FETERIE - HUBIE —ARTR We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
RUBZENNEERER  ER{TRESEND explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
ZBE RREUBRREEFTREZZHRR sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
o R ZHETE c WMEHERR - RITREH statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we
ERTVBBRERMBCEHERRBEERREH - also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
RITHEGE  ATZ2ERIEERTIEREYA financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
b e 2 our opinion.
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IEFE 2w R
Reng LCRREBQTGD ZHEERM

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at 30 April 2005 and of the profit
and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 July 2005



Consolidated Income Statement

(2T HFPNH =+ HIFFE  For the year ended 30 April 2005

—ETME

—EERF FHET

FET (BE7F))

B 5 2005 2004

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000

(Restated)

- Turnover 4 176,393 135,237
8H B B AR Cost of sales (143,833) (116,091)

E I Gross profit 32,560 19,146

H 4 = A Other operating income 6 651 627
TR X Administrative expenses (25,911) (28,140)

wEMENFEMEEM Increase in fair value of investment property 800 500

T REFEMES Surplus on revaluation of land and buildings 1,216 =
RN (BR) Profit (loss) from operations 9,316 (7.867)
W& R Finance costs (2,050) (1,731)
FE(REEE R R A Share of results of associates 21 (83)

e H RGBS EE Share of results of jointly controlled entities 113 -
BB A s F (E18) Profit (loss) before taxation 7,400 (9,681)

I Taxation 10 (1,278) 862

Rt L H IR =AY Profit (loss) before minority

A (E518) interest 6,122 (8,819)

D EIRR = Minority interest (42) 245
REEmA (EE) F58 Net profit (loss) for the year 6,080 (8,574)

Al HK cent

f& 8 Dividend 11 0.50 -

BRAERN (EE) Eamings (loss) per share 12 BALHK cent 7B IlIHK cent
R Basic 1.33 (1.87)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REZFZRFMA=+H At 30 April 2005

—ZTTPE
—ZTTERF FHT
FTHT (B&E5)
Bt & 2005 2004
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
FRBEE Non-current assets
KEME Investment property 13 5,100 4,300
M - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 14 26,063 24,988
& Goodwill 15 3,138 3,572
RN P Interests in associates 17 352 144
REAREH B 2 R Interests in jointly controlled entities 18 1,119 98
35,772 33,102
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 19 2,010 417
& W2 B K Trade receivables 20 25,453 30,401
BREFAEHIENE Amount due from customers for contract work 21 20,956 29,741
JE W AR B € FRIE Retention money receivables 7,680 4,865
TERTFRIE - RE REM Prepayments, deposits and other
& W sk IR receivables 4,784 6,164
A 4 Bl %18 Tax recoverable - 884
HRITF R Pledged bank deposits 33 - 500
RITEHKREIRE Bank balances and cash 5,850 4,883
66,733 77855
mEAE Current liabilities
JE T AR R R EL fth & A5 5K IE Trade and other payables 22 13,467 13,484
BNRPEHTIIERE Amount due to customers for contract work 21 5,145 9,200
FE TR B & FIE Retention money payables 3,994 4,822
JE& {5 2k [R] 22 o & 48 7RIA Amount due to a jointly controlled entity 18 804 =
FE T R I& Bills payable - 489
JE& 5 35 18 Tax payable 197 336
Bh & FH 4R Obligations under finance leases 23 485 878
IRITE R Bank borrowings 24 28,251 35,715
52,343 64,924
REBEEFE Net current assets 14,390 12,931
WEERRBAERS Total assets less current liabilities 50,162 46,033
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R-EZRFMA=-+H At30April 2005

—ETME
—ETRF FHT
FHET (BE&E351)
B 5 2005 2004
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
LPERRER Minority interest 29 (523) (565)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities
A& A A R Obligations under finance leases 23 19 500
IRITEK Bank borrowings 24 3,889 6,364
BT IR Deferred tax 25 2,194 887
REIRRTS @ B H Provision for long service payments 26 512 856
6,614 8,607
44,071 37991
R AR & Capital and reserves
N Share capital 27 4,575 4,575
1 Reserves 39,496 33,416
44,071 37991
F29EB AU BHEN —_TTAF LA _+H The financial statements on pages 29 to 85 were approved and authorised for

HEEattmREENE YA TIALRE issue by the Board of Directors on 25 July 2005 and are signed on its behalf
B5E by:

BT A JK BB
SO YU SHING WOO SIU LUN
BF BF
Director Director
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Balance Sheet

R-EZRFMA=-+H At30April 2005

—EEREF —ZETMEF
FTET FHET
Me=E 2005 2004
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
EREBEE Non-current asset
LN NGIP: 3 Interests in subsidiaries 16 25,156 22,090
RBEE Current assets
SEENE Prepayments 100 100
A Uz [a] ¢ 18 Tax recoverable - 98
RITEBRLES Bank balances and cash 25 26
125 224
B A E Current liability
H ) & 1+ BR K Other payables 225 305
RBAEFHE Net current liabilities (100) (81)
BWEERASERE Total assets less current liabilities 25,056 22,009
FRBEE Non-current liability
FEAS — A Y B & Rl 3k IE Amount due to a subsidiary 31 668 174
24,388 21,835
B R #E Capital and reserves
AR Share capital 27 4,575 4,575
& Reserves 30 19,813 17,260
24,388 21,835
RO R A Ik B
SO YU SHING WOO SIU LUN
EF BFE
Director Director
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mEEREERE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE—TTARFINA=1HIFFZ For the year ended 30 April 2005

REMF

ERRAE

Investment
BA  BROPEE SOFEE  property REEF
Share Share Merger revaluation  Retained k]
capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total

TET THT TET TR TR TR
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKFO00  HK$000  HK$000

(Fft 3£3)
(note 3)
R-_ZEZ=FRAF—H At T May 2003
—MBAERE — As previously reported 4,575 17463 2,222 573 22,109 46,942
B EREYH T E ~ Effect of change in
accounting policy - - - (573) 196 377)
—REE7| — As restated 4,575 17463 2222 = 22,305 46,565
REEEBBRFE Net loss for the year - - - - (8574)  (8574)
R-ZEENFNAB=+H At 30 April 2004 4,575 17,463 2,222 = 13,731 37991
RE e M FHR Net profit for the year - - - - 6,080 6,080
RZZEZRAFMA=+H At 30 April 2005 4,575 17,463 2,222 - 19,811 44,071
Bt - Notes:
(1) RZZETRAFMA=+H FAEBEZ2RBEME (1) At 30 April 2005, the retained profits of the Group included loss of HK$62,000
FEEIEASE L AR 2 E1862,0008 T (ZF (2004: loss of HK$83,000) attributable to associates of the Group.
T U4 : §51883,0008 L) °
2 RZZETAFMA=TH FAEBZRBHME (2) At 30 April 2005, the retained profits of the Group included profit of HK$113,000
5 P& 15 AN 55 B L (R4 ) B 88 2 % A1 113,000/ 7T (2004: Nil) attributable to jointly controlled entities of the Group.
“TTNEF M\ o
(3) AEEZAHREEHEARREEITZRAEEA (3)  The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
BERBEASER _TZE-—F+—-A-+=H# amount of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange for the nominal
TZEEEAMBANBRAREZHTRAEEZ value for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
E® e Group's reorganisation on 23 November 2001.
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GEEHEREMER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_FTZTRFMA=1HIFEZE For the year ended 30 April 2005

—EETME
—EERF FHIT
FHET (BE75)
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
R Operating activities
KN (ER) Profit (loss) from operations 9,316 (7,867)
TS IEE L FHE Adjustments for:
B A Interest income (55) (25)
R Amortisation of goodwill 434 434
e Depreciation 2,785 1,941
HEWHE - BE (Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant
®fE (sR) e and equipment (67) 22
REBREE Allowance for doubtful debts 3,121 2,329
"EWEQNFEELL N Increase in fair value of investment property (800) (500)
+ i R FE AR Surplus on revaluation of land and buildings (1,216) -
RERR %5 & B R Decrease in provision for long service payments (344) (64)
REEESBBA 2L E Operating cash flows before movements in
RERE working capital 13,174 (3,730)
FEEM Increase in inventories (1,593) (234)
JFE ST AR FRORL 2 Decrease in trade receivables 2,457 5,863
EREFEHIERE Decrease (increase) in amount due from customers
A () for contract work 9,700 (16,106)
FEUR B & (B ) & 4 (Increase) decrease in retention money receivables (2,815) 1,460
ERRIE - me REHME Decrease (increase) in prepayments, deposits and
WK I8 Rk 4> (3 an) other receivables 750 (2,051)
JRE AT B R B HL Ath, & £+ IR (Decrease) increase in trade and other payables
(R 2) 38 A0 17) 1,097
ERNERPEAIIENRIE (Decrease) increase in amount due to customers for
CRi &) 12 0 contract work (4,055) 5,841
J& < 4R B & Rk 2 Decrease in retention money payables (828) (123)
FEAT ERIEHIFEEFRIBRE AN Increase in amount due to a jointly controlled entity 804 -
J& 1 RABOR Decrease in bills payable (489) (220)
REXB S (FTA) Net cash generated from
ReFE (used in) operations 17,088 (8,203)
B S B Profits Tax paid (150) (1,263)
RENEH Profits tax refunded 924 -
REXKRE Net cash from (used in) operating activities
(FTA)R&FE 17,862 (9,466)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE—TTARFINA=1HIFFZ For the year ended 30 April 2005

—ZTEWMEF
“EERF T
FET (B&E5)
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
REX Investing activities
B FH 2 Interest received 55 25
BEME  KERR Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,652) 671)
AR 1T 17 FOR Decrease in pledged bank deposits 500 2,528
WEE—FEME AR 2 Acquisition of additional interest

FINME =R in a subsidiary - (69)
W RERE S N A 2 Acquisition of interests in associates - (200)
m) — F Bk & 8 R4 fit B K Advance to an associate (187) 27)
HEWE - BB &R Proceeds on disposal of property,

Ffr 15 K18 plant and equipment 160 157
KE—HHERZEGERE Investment in a jointly controlled entity (5) -
Im) — ) 2 (R 428 1 22 48 Advance to a jointly controlled

R B entity (903) -
REXXK (FTA) e Net cash (used in) from

ReFH investing activities (4,032) 1,743
EE-E S Financing activities
[=ESEAIES] Interest paid (1,997) (1,600)
ENBMEENER Finance lease charges paid (53) 131)
FEBITER New bank loans raised 57,955 39,190
BEBRITER Repayment of bank loans (60,160) (25,446)
BEMERORE Repayment of obligations under finance leases (874) (2,369)
(AR) REME XK Net cash (used in) from

BHEFEEE financing activities (5,129) 9,644
ReRESEEER Net increase in cash and

¥ hn E 28 cash equivalents 8,701 1,921
FENzRERBEEEEE  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (11,533) (13,454)
FRZHEERESLEEEE  Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (2,832) (11,533)
BeRBELEEEFEB AR DM Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents

WITHEHR LIRS Bank balances and cash 5,850 4,883

RITHE X Bank overdrafts (8,682) (16,416)

(2,832) (11,533)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE—TZRFEPIA=+HIFF/Z  For the year ended 30 April 2005

1. —R=E1E

GENERAL

ARBNFAEHREEMKR LS —HAZHRRERA
A - EROREEBE R SPER AR ([B2A])

BIZER (TRIZRIR]) £ -

AEBETERFRHEBZEREETEMRRERE

BRZET -

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(the “GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of scaffolding and

management contracting service for the construction and building works.

2. %Lﬁﬁ srER
ZEE E 2

IMPACT AND POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM
THE RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

—EENE  FEEMAE ((BESMAE])
M Z A BB 2 BB G ER([HEE
FHER) REB PR EER ([FEM RS
A1) (BRI EEMBREEL]) - REER
BREENFIGIEBA G - ZFERIN =
TEAF A A2 RFAIE BT HRAER -
BEMBREENFIMGERANBEERS=F
TRhE-A—BRZRZEBEH - ARELE
FREMBEHA-_ZZRF A —HAgzgz®
Baestins - Bt - BEMEREERE 36
FEER-_ZETRFNA=1TRH L FEIEEK

= a5
=

AEEGHBE _TTRFMA=THIEFEZ
HBHRE - BERFRATB S ENF4095 K
BWE] - KNBR S ERFI0REHAEE

BRTREREHWOT :
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In 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“"HKICPA") issued a number of new or revised Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKAS") and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(herein collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs") which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005 except for HKFRS 3
“Business Combination”. HKFRS 3 is applicable to business combinations for
which the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005. The Group has not
entered into any business combination for which the agreement date is on or
after 1 January 2005. Therefore HKFRS 3 did not have any impact on the
Group for the year ended 30 April 2005.

The Group has early adopted HKAS 40 “ Investment property” in the
preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2005. The
adoption of the HKAS 40 has resulted in the following changes in the Group's

accounting policies:



MR MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE—TTARFINA=1HIFFZ For the year ended 30 April 2005

2. ¥ﬁLﬁE7FFé"|' 2l

HERBERE

\
(A&

IMPACT AND POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM
THE RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

EREFE  REVEDREBLEER 2BIER
HEARFETEAR EGMREVERELZFE
MEHEESREFTARENEEGFRL B Z
FEHE  EHZREE AR T REARBEGR
B AEGREBLRENEEGRESEHRZE
BEKERNR - WERE A RERAIBRBER
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In prior years, investment property is stated at its open market value based on
independent professional valuations at the balance sheet date. Any revaluation
increase or decrease arising on the revaluation of investment property is
credited or charged to the investment property revaluation reserve unless the
balance on this reserve is insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease, in which
case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance on the
investment property revaluation reserve is charged to the income statement.
Where a decrease has previously been charged to the income statement and a
revaluation increase subsequently arises, this increase is credited to the income
statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged. On disposal of an
investment property, the balance on the investment property revaluation
reserve attributable to the property is transferred to the income statement. No
depreciation is provided on investment property except where the unexpired

term of the relevant lease is 20 years or less.

Following the adoption of HKAS 40, changes in fair value of investment
properties are included in the income statement. The effect of the change in
accounting policy is adjusted in accordance with the transitional provision of
HKAS 40 by transferring HK$573,000 from the investment property revaluation

reserve to the opening retained profits as at 1 May 2003.

In addition, deferred tax was provided on the basis that the carrying amount of
investment property would be recovered through sale in prior years. Following
the adoption of HKAS 40, deferred tax is provided on the basis that the
carrying amounts of investment properties will be recovered through use, and
additional deferred tax of HK$377,000 was charged to the retained profits as at
1 May 2003. Deferred tax liabilities as at 30 April 2004 were increased by
HK$500,000.
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IMPACT AND POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM
THE RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)
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The effect of the above adoption/change has the following impact on the profit
(loss) for 2005 and 2004 as follows:

—gERF _—TIMF

2005 2004

THERT FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

wEMENFEMEEM Increase in fair value of investment property 800 500
iR R T TE B AR 3 N Increase in deferred tax charge (144) (123)

i FI 38 0, s 1R A 7 B8 Net increase in profit/decrease in loss 656 377

REBE RGBS B REERN ZEER
2 - B ATDRBERT E UL ¥ B B B 75 s 22 Rl &
RANZBRARB 2 REEERWBRAERHE
BAXE - BBV BRS LT EHARR
R E2RFEERI MR Z TEE &
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The Group has commenced considering the potential impact of the other new
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to determine whether the other new
HKFRSs would have a significant impact on how its results of operations and
financial position are prepared and presented. The other new HKFRSs may
result in changes in the future as to how the results and financial position are

prepared and presented.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention as modified for the revaluation of land and buildings and
investment property and in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in Hong Kong.

The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of

the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30 April each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or

up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group have

been eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets

and liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line
basis over its useful economic life. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of

subsidiaries is presented separately in the balance sheet.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in

the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

R B REAIZRE

BB 2 ) 2 320 Ty IR AR A R AE T 3 B

BRIAKARZAEAEE -

RBEE LAz Bm

REEREERENEERER 2K
BREE ERAAEBMRN  RBEATZ

25 T R AR R R A 2 R 2 AR E R ]
B 5] 2 LB 5 1R 51 -

HEZFE R

— A& eE DA ER 2B

AEBNEFRZEGER 2R IRAEE D5 H
FEHEREEFEZLEREMNE B ZRE
BRRENTABEERBERPIIR - AREDEE
HEIEHERUR R XE N ES RamR PR -

40 ERZRAR2AT | WLS Holdings Limited

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at

cost less any identified impairment loss.
Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group's share of the post-
acquisition results of its associates for the year. In the consolidated balance
sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group's share of the net assets

of the associates less any identified impairment loss.
Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangement which involve the establishment of a separate entity

in which each venturer has an interest are referred to as jointly controlled

entity.

The Group's interests in jointly controlled entity is included in the consolidated
balance sheet at the Group's share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entity less any identified impairment loss. The Group's share of the post-
acquisition results of its jointly controlled entity is included in the consolidated

income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

ERES D2 ERB AR EHAEE - BEBRK
BESHZWHEMATIAED XERAAR  RIE
ESTEBLEKRNMERBIRA K2 At TIRAK
NEZBDhAE - GHOTIRZES  RENRE
BRRERETEFPHEEZIBRTFA -

EEEANZBERRER FHAFR - WAES
RIEE A AU R & 4K A By 46 T RERR o

H 1

KR IRIS PSR IMR L S IRTS S T LATERR

MHE 2B WRATIRERELERBLEFH T oA

DZ/J ©

MBKATIZBHAREEAS
REREEZRG o

MR AERME

REY=E

REMERFFERRES R HEREEME -
NAFEEREEARBRIIE RAREVEAF
BEEPHELZ RAX BRI EZHM 2 BE -

Revenue recognition
Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the proportion
that costs incurred to date bear to estimated total costs for each contract.
Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the

extent that they have been agreed with the customer.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable will be recoverable.

Others

Provision of services are recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental income in respect of properties is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the term of the lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal

outstanding and at the relevant interest rate applicable.
Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation, is stated at its fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in

profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued amount,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not
differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the

balance sheet date.

Any surplus arising on the revaluation of land and buildings is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of
the same asset previously recognised as an expense, in which case the surplus
is credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit previously
charged. A deficit in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset is
dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on
the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation

surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the term of the lease

Buildings Over the shorter of the term

of the lease, or 50 years
Plant and machinery 20%
Metal tubes and catwalk 10%
Gondolas and related equipment 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as assets owned by the Group or, where shorter, the

term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sale proceed and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in the income statement.
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets concerned to
the Group. Assets held under finance leases are capitalised at their fair values
at the dates of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor, net of
interest charges, is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total leasing
commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to the
income statement over the period of the relevant lease so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for

each accounting period.

All other leases are classified as operating leases and the annual rentals
payable or receivable are charged or credited to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease terms, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
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Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are charged to the income statement by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as measured
by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to estimated total costs for

the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,

the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as amount due from
customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the balance
sheet as advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet
paid by the customers, are included in the balance sheet within trade and

other receivables.
Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are

charged as an expense as they fall due.
Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on
the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on exchange are included in

net profit or loss for the period.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's subsidiaries which are
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars and which operates
in overseas are translated into Hong Kong dollars at exchange rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s exchange reserve. Such
translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period

in which the operation is disposed of.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it

further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also

dealt with in equity.
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4. i -l TURNOVER
—geEF —TENF
2005 2004
TERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIEERGEETIR Contract revenue in respect of construction
RS M= and building works for the provision of
—MREERK — scaffolding service 75,691 105,204
— RIERY — fitting out service 20,576 4,340
EREANRY Management contracting service 72,244 21,017
MM IER BIERK Gondolas, parapet railings and access
BeEEREM e 2 ER equipment installation
HAE AR 75 and maintenance services 7,882 4,676
176,393 135,237
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Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into three
operating divisions: (i) scaffolding and fitting out service for the construction
and building works, (ii) management contracting service for the construction
and building works, and (iii) gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment

installation and maintenance services.

ERAZEXEB 20 BRENIIHMAT - Segment information about these businesses is presented below.
—EERF 2005
RBER REER AMIESR -
BEIR BEIR frER R
REMELR RUEE BREBSHEMZ
R B R BHRYE ZEREBRYE
Scaffolding and Management  Gondolas, parapet
fitting out contracting railings and
service for service  access equipment
the construction for the installation and Hitr%
and building  construction and maintenance Other oM ®E
works building works services operations Elimination Consolidated
TER TER TER TERT TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g 8 REVENUE
HONEE External sales 96,267 72,244 7,882 - - 176,393
HEEHE Inter-segment sales 8,870 - 1,143 5,941 (15,954) -
ol g Total revenue 105,137 72,244 9,025 5,941 (15,954) 176,393
SERHEDERAIKANETAMEDLKE - Inter-segment sales are charged at cost or cost plus a percentage of profit mark-up.
AEEE Segment result 6,174 3,452 (1,837) (797) - 6,992
Hfh g2l A Other operating income 651
REMELTEEEM Increase in fair value of
investment property 800
Bt REFZRH Surplus on revaluation of
land and buildings 1,216
APBEERR Unallocated corporate
expenses (343)
8 7 Profit from operations 9,316
BB A Finance costs (2,050)
FBEHERA 2 EE Share of results of associates 21
EEERZHEREE Share of results of jointly
controlled entities 113
B % A 7 Profit before taxation 7,400
A Taxation (1,278)
Kt VERRESAEF]  Profit before minority interest 6,122
LPYRRER Minority interest (42)
F R FE Net profit for the year 6,080
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SEGMENT INFORMATION-CONTINUED (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

EEBMB/R BALANCE SHEET
BHIER
REEREE REEREE HERRER
TREMAMRE TREM #EHEMzR%E
BREREERK EBANERB REBRE
Scaffolding and Management ~ Gondolas, parapet
fitting out contracting railings and
service for the services  access equipment
construction for the installation and Hitr %
and building  construction and maintenance Other o)
works building works services operations Consolidated
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
SREE Segment assets 71,183 6,732 9,814 655 88,384
REEE R A 2 Interests in associates 352
RERZEHEREZ % Interests in jointly
controlled entities 1,119
RAPEECEEE Unallocated corporate assets 12,650
RARAERE Consolidated total assets 102,505
& LIABILITIES
SHERE Segment liabilities 4177 16,522 647 1,036 22,382
JE A — il 25 R #2 Amount due to a jointly
EBHREA controlled entity 804
APEGCEEE Unallocated corporate liabilities 35,771
RABERE Consolidated total liabilities 58,957
HiEH OTHER INFORMATION
BMIEAR
REEREETIR REEREE BERR R
RHBREE IERMHEE KBEMZRE
REBRE SRR REBRE
Scaffolding and Management  Gondolas, parapet
fitting out contracting railings and
service for service  access equipment
the construction for the installation and Hith %%
and building  construction and maintenance Other ROE ®E
works building works services operations Unallocated Consolidated
TERT TERL TER FTER TERT TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEARAT Capital expenditure 3,649 - - 3 - 3,652
e Depreciation 2,858 1 420 291 130 3,700
[ElcE £ Amortisation of goodwill 4 - 430 - - 434
AERERE Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts 2,630 - 491 - - 3,121
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

e isfS 2004
REER REER BHIES -
BEIR BEIi mERRER
REMRER REEE #ESMZRE
REERB A RRT N A (B BR 75
Scaffolding and Management  Gondolas, parapet
fitting out contracting railings and
service for service  access equipment
the construction for the installation and Hh %75
and building ~ construction and maintenance Other E3gc| me
works building works services operations Elimination Consolidated
THT FET THT THET THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& REVENUE
HINEE External sales 109,544 21,017 4,676 - - 135,237
HERHEE Inter-segment sales - - - 7637 (7,637) -
s Total revenue 109,544 21,017 4,676 7637 (7637) 135,237
AERHEDERAIKAME T RMNBE DL KE - Inter-segment sales are charged at cost or cost plus a percentage of profit mark-up.
AEEE Segment result (6,742) 601 (1,304) (685) - (8,130)
S ON Other operating income 627
BEMERTEEEM Increase in fair value of
investment property 500
APBEERZ Unallocated corporate expenses (864)
BEFR Loss from operations (7,867)
B AR Finance costs (1,731)
FElEB e ARl 2 %A Share of results of associates (83)
BREAER Loss before taxation (9,681)
= Taxation 862
KT DVERFEEEABE  Loss before minority interest (8,819)
PHBREER Minority interest 245
FRNERFH Net loss for the year (8,574)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

EEBMB/R BALANCE SHEET
B IES -
Ti2feftize TERE #EHMzkE
ER KBRS BEREHNRY R#EERY
Scaffolding and Management  Gondolas, parapet
fitting out contracting railings and
service for the services  access equipment
construction for the installation and Hin %%
and building construction and maintenance Other o)
works building works services operations Consolidated
FEL TET TET FTET FTEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets 79,073 10,435 5,456 7342 102,306
REEE R A 2 Interests in associates 144
RERZEHEREZ % Interest in a jointly controlled entity 98
AOBEEEE Unallocated corporate assets 8,409
RAEERE Consolidated total assets 110,957
& LIABILITIES
HEEE Segment liabilities 20,967 4412 748 976 27103
AOBEEARE Unallocated corporate liabilities 46,428
megEAs Consolidated total liabilities 73,531
Hi&EH OTHER INFORMATION
REEREE AMIESR
Ti2fedt REBEREE BrER R E R
2R 2 TERHE #EHHzkk
REERD EREHRY N A AE BR 15
Scaffolding and Management  Gondolas, parapet
fitting out contracting railings and
service for service  access equipment
the construction for the installation and Hh %%
and building  construction and maintenance Other AO® ma
works building works services operations Unallocated Consolidated
FTET FEL TET TET FTET FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREX Capital expenditure 1,334 5 27 - - 1,366
nE Depreciation 2471 - 419 848 130 3,868
HENE  BER Loss on disposal of property,

B i plant and equipment 22 - - - - 22
WEmE Acquisition of gooduwill 39 - - - - 39
[ElcE £ Amortisation of goodwill 4 - 430 - - 434
AERERE Allowance for bad and

doubtful debts 2,329 - - - - 2,329
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5. TRER @ SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
1 15 77 25 Geographical segments
AR AKEBBI0%N & X5 - KL RN (EHR) More than 90% of the Group's turnover, profit (loss) from operations, assets
REEHRE MRES @ B EL25]H %S are derived from/situated in Hong Kong, and therefore no geographical
BEH - segments are presented.
6. Hih && WA OTHER OPERATING INCOME
—EEAF T4
2005 2004
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
E 5 M s F 8 Exchange gains, net - 6
HEME - BE Gain on disposal of property,
Bl & plant and equipment 67 =
A B2 WA Interest income 55 25
HEWA - MBEZEX Rental income,
—ETMEF - &) net of outgoings: nil (2004: Nil) 144 129
FEIEWA Sundry income 385 467
651 627
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7. REREAM (EE) PROFIT (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS
—EERF —TT M
2005 2004
TERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
LN (BE) 2 kR Profit (loss) from operations
T 51538 has been arrived at after charging:
REBEREE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 3,121 2,329
7 2 4 5 Amortisation of goodwill (included in
(BIETHRX) administrative expenses) 434 434
% BB & Auditors’ remuneration 595 545
BRRAFAI 2FERR Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 1,138 1,276
e Depreciation
EEEE Owned assets 3,274 2,956
NRERNFEZEE Assets held under finance leases 426 912
3,700 3,868
B BEASANEEESE Less: Amount attributable to
construction contracts (915) (1,927)
2,785 1,941
HEWME - BE K Loss on disposal of property,
Bl SE plant and equipment - 22
TH REFZEERLD Minimum lease payments for
Z&EEE operating leases in respect of
land and buildings 644 1,607
BETIRA(BIEESHE) Staff costs including directors’ emoluments 32,205 43,803
B BEAANEEESE Less: Amount attributable to
construction contracts (18,185) (21,552)
14,020 22,251
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8. Bt 75 A AR FINANCE COSTS

—Z22IRF —EEE
2005 2004
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

AREFAZEER Interest on bank borrowings wholly
ZRITEFFE repayable within five years 1,997 1,600
BB EEZ 7F'J B Interest on obligations under finance leases 53 131
2,050 1,731

9. EENREEME

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(@ EEH= (a) Directors’ emoluments
—2TIfF —TTHEHF
2005 2004
FER THT
HK$'000 HK$'000
e Fees:
AT Executive - -
BT Non-executive 72 53
B IEHAT Independent non-executive 272 214
344 267
HEMe - Other emoluments:
AT Executive
3 BN K2 E At 42 F Salaries and other benefits 5,611 5,570
E K48 A 5T &) 4 5k Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme 59 60
5,670 5,630
6,014 5,897

RER - SBIITESWEERIBNE 5 542,092,000
BT (ZZZTMMA 2,027,000 7T)  1,126000/8 7T
(ZZZTWF : 1,307,000/ 7T) * 852,000/ 7T (=
P4 : 827,000/57T) © 782,000/ T (Z T T UL :
) ~ 597,000/ 7T (ZZZ Y4 : 702,0007T) &
221,000/ 7T (ZZZPU4F : 767,000/870) + —&3E
BITEFREESHEE 720008 T (ZETNF -
530007T) + R=EF (ZZZWF : MA) BUF
WITE S WEVERIESHE 1000008 (ZEF M
4 : 107,000/ 7T) * 100,000/ T (Z T Z Q4 :
107,000/ 7T) & 72,0008 7T (Z T M4 : &) o
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During the year, the six executive directors received individual emoluments of
HK$2,092,000 (2004: HK$2,027,000), HK$ 1,126,000 (2004: HK$1,307,000),
HK$852,000 (2004: HK$827,000), HK$782,000 (2004: Nil), HK$597,000
(2004: HK$702,000) and HK$221,000 (2004: HK$767,000), respectively;
one non-executive director received director’s fee of HK$72,000 (2004:
HK$53,000); and the three (2004: two) independent non-executive directors
received individual directors’ fees of HK$100,000 (2004: HK$107,000),
HK$100,000 (2004: HK$107,000) and HK$72,000 (2004: Nil).
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9, BEEREEME @

DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

b)) EEH=Z

IERSFMALERERESR (CTTMEF -
TRES)  HBeHBERLEXQ@REE - F
AREHFLABEEHRESE (CTENF : A

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included five directors (2004: five directors),
details of whose emoluments are included in (a) above. The aggregate

emoluments of the five highest paid employees, all of them were directors,

REF)2BEMESFBOT (2004 five directors), for the year were as follows:
—2TEF —TTHEHF
2005 2004
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e K EH AR F Salaries and other benefits 5,390 5,570
R RAE A ET B 5k Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme 59 60
5,449 5,630

TEREFMALZHNEBIA TEHE

The emoluments for the five highest paid individuals were within the following
bands:

—2TIEF —TTHEHF

2005 2004

A" A

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

= % 1,000,000/ 7T Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 3 3
1,000,0017% 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1 1
2,000,001 7T Z 2,500,000 7T HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 1 1
5 5

FR - ANEE R —BEE 100,000 TIE RN
AREBFIRMAREE 2 BE) 0 WEEERE
ERBME -

During the year, emoluments of HK$100,000 were paid by the Group to a
director as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group. None of the

directors has waived any emoluments.
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10. | ®IA TAXATION
—®REF —TEEF
2005 2004
FHx FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&71)
(Restated)
RIERX (BR) 21 The charge (credit) comprises:
B NEH Hong Kong Profits Tax
REE Current year 43 198
T (GBRR) TRER (Over)underprovision in prior years (72) 51
(29) 249
HihrERR - ARFE Other jurisdiction — current year - 110
R FE B 18 (B 5E25) Deferred tax (note 25)
RERE Current year 915 (1,419)
TEDREME Underprovision in prior years 392 -
B 2 78 B 3 2 BT 3 Attributable to a change in
tax rate in Hong Kong - 198
1,307 (1,221)
1,278 (862)

BENEREREFE ARt ERTUSE R 2 17.5%7% Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the estimated assessable profit

REHE o for the year.
RE M B AR R FTE L 2 BIRTIIRIRA B ADEE Taxation arising on other jurisdiction is calculated at the rate in the relevant
B2 BHEAE o jurisdiction.
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10. PIE @) TAXATION (Continued)

FRZBIAMX (%) B SRR 2% (& The tax charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss) per

18) 2 ¥R T the income statement as follows:
—ZE2ARAF —ETME
2005 2004
THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(F751)
(Restated)
BB A& R (E18) Profit (loss) before taxation 7,400 (9,681)
REBBMBHZE17.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
FTE 2 HIE of 17.5% 1,295 (1,694)
ERBMERRIZEE BB E Tax effect of share of results of associates (4) 15
FE(R HEEHIE 8 Tax effect of share of results of
REZMBTE jointly controlled entities (20) -
PAIMBz A2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible
MG g for tax purpose 189 122
HAERD Z WAZ Tax effect of income not taxable
M & for tax purpose (107) %)
BEE RS %R B Increase in opening deferred tax
BHHY) 2R resulting from an increase
i T 1 N in Hong Kong Profits Tax rate - 198
ATHAZTEBRE BB E Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 64 648
B) A 18 1 3 K R Utilisation of tax losses previously
ZRIEER not recognised (422) -
EFEEREA 2T RER Underprovision of deferred tax
in prior years 392 -
TERBAEH (Over)underprovision of Hong Kong
2 (BBEE) TR s Profits Tax in prior years (72) 51
T H Ath, B VA 4 [ A8 Effect of different tax rates of
pd )= NG E subsidiaries operating in
MEZZE other jurisdictions - (14)
Hth Others 37) (184)
FRzHERZ (E2) Tax charge (credit) for the year 1,278 (862)
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11. g B2

DIVIDEND

EERZFHRNRBREER05EI (ZETME
) HAGRRERBRRBFRE LHE -

The final dividend of HKO.5 cent (2004: Nil) per share has been proposed by
the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the annual

general meeting.

12. BREF (F#H)

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

BREXAEN (BR)REBATENGTE :

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share is based on the following

data:
—2TIfF —TTHEHF
2005 2004
THER FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Z51)
(Restated)
FARAM (EE) Earnings (loss) for the year 6,080 (8,574)
SEHERERRAT Number of ordinary shares for the
(BE) 2 EEREA purpose of basic earnings
(loss) per share 457,500,000 457,500,000

Rt BERE - Mo BRERERERZ LREK
FHREBAT

The adjustment to comparative basic loss per share, arising from the changes

in accounting policy is as follows:

A
HK cents
—EENFEREELHE Reconciliation of 2004 loss per share:
AR FTRE T Reported figure before adjustment (1.96)
BETERNE 2 HE (Hia2) Adjustments arising from the changes
in accounting policy (note 2) 0.09
KB

el B 2 2 ) 84 1 5 2 17 (R 0 M 2 1
BERRG 2 T - M 2 5 WA
SRBERTF -
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Restated (1.87)

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both years because the
exercise price of the Company's outstanding share options is higher than the

average market prices of the shares during both years.
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13. | REWE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

FET
HK$'000
KE THE GROUP
REE AT VALUATION
R-_ZBZEWERA—A At 1 May 2004 4,300
RERRTFEME 2N Increase in fair value during the year 800
RZZEZERAFMA=1H At 30 April 2005 5,100

AEBURBEEZREMETDZRBBHFE -
WIRELEHROEE -

RNEE 2 &% E YT 18 N B Y E A RS
HEEFHERARKRARMTEEER _TTH
FIA =T HEMW - BEffEEZZH 800,000 T
BEEFAZENRERA -

BT EEMNGEERARAREERANEMES
REBUNESMEBGZKE  WHEBEENERR
BAMN AR EGEYENER - AT EER
BRBYFEEEMERSINERZFASMMRMG 2
[(MEREGECZZE=ZFFAR IREBAE
EhEE Rz [HERE(CEZRFE—|R) ]
W2REMSFRABLUDEZ X ZBERMETE

REBBREMERDZDERSRA (FIBY
FEYBBLERAD L) Z 14400087 (ZFF
PU4F : 129,000 7T) - MERNHERREMEE
ECHEBEKEEBR o

The investment property of the Group is situated in Hong Kong, held under a

long term lease, and is rented out under operating lease.

The investment property of the Group was revalued on 30 April 2005 by
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent professional property
valuer, on an open market value basis. The increase in fair value of
HK$800,000 is credited to the consolidated income statement.

Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited is a member of the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors (“RICS") and Hong Kong Institute of Surveyor (“HKIS"),,
and have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
properties in the relevant location. The valuation, which conforms to the Hong
Kong Guidance Notes on “the Valuation of Property Assets (5 Edition May
2003)" published by RICS and “the Valuation Standards (First Edition 2005)
on Properties” published by HKIS, was arrived at by reference to market

evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

The property rental income earned by the Group from its investment property,
all of which is leased out under operating leases, amounted to HK$144,000
(2004: HK$129,000). There are no direct operating expenses arising on the

investment property in both years.
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14. | W% BERRE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

tHE AMIfs
kER REBRE BHRREE
IHREF HERRE Metal ~ Gondolas B Furniture
landand Plantand tubesand and related Motor and Azt
buildings machinery catwalk equipment  vehicles fixtures Total
FTET FTET FTET FHET FTET TET TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
X558 THE GROUP
A fE COST OR VALUATION
RZZZEMFRA—A At 1 May 2004 5,950 1,021 22,164 4,101 6,314 5,387 44937
NE Additions - 22 3,523 - - 107 3,652
kS Disposals - - - - (415) - (415)
Bih R Surplus on revaluation 750 - = = = = 750
RZZZREMA=1H At 30 April 2005 6,700 1,043 25,687 4,101 5,899 5,494 48,924
2% Comprising:
RAE At cost = 1,043 25,687 4,101 5,899 5494 42204
R-ZZLEMHE At 2005 valuation 6,700 - - - - - 6,700
6,700 1,043 25,687 4,101 5,899 5,494 48924
ik DEPRECIATION
RZEEMERA-A At 1 May 2004 336 781 9,325 1379 4,658 3,470 19,949
FRRE Provided for the year 130 140 1,894 411 546 579 3,700
ek Eliminated on disposals - - - - (322) - (322)
B Eliminated upon revaluation (466) - - - - - (466)
R-BEREMA=1H At 30 April 2005 - 921 11,219 1,790 4,882 4,049 22,861
REFE NET BOOK VALUES
RZZERFNA=1H At 30 April 2005 6,700 122 14,468 2,311 1,017 1,445 26,063
RZFEMFNA=1H At 30 April 2004 5614 240 12,839 2,722 1,656 1,917 24,988
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14. | 9% BERSE®

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

REEZ L REFLRNEE - AP HBEET A
’E -

AEBEZ I REFHBY S EGHEMBELT (B
B)ERABNR_ZETRFENMA=1TRHERA AT
BEEEETERRBRATEINR - BEHBBKRZ
1,216,000/ 7T AGT Afr & Wz &k o BURHT B ERT
HERAGAREESRASMES RE B AL
BeU7KE  WHEEGHEENERRAIARER
EREEYENER - NTEEREEMEESE
HEESINEEERASMBR 2 [MEEER
B(CEE=FFANR) I RELNSMEGHEH
ZIMEEEE(CTTRFE—H) ] - WRBEM
SHEARAUMEIZRSHERMEE -

fii Lt R F W EMAEITE R - FIRE LKA R
=H7 89,461,000 7T, (ZE T M4 : 9,712,000/
TO) A AREMBRRA °

R-ZTTRAFMA=1H  FEEUBRERLE
BRAEEEZEMFELNAI780008TT - K=
ZEMFEMA=1H  AEEUREROFTEZ
AE - PRI EAREBREEEZREFES
5l A 1,401,000/ 7T &% 2,527,000/ 7T °

The land and buildings of the Group are situated in Hong Kong and are held

under medium term leases.

The land and buildings of the Group were revalued on 30 April 2005 by Vigers
Hong Kong Limited, an independent professional property valuer, on an open
market value basis, less subsequent depreciation. The revaluation resulted in a
surplus of HK$1,216,000 is credited to the consolidated income statement.
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited is @ member of the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors (“RICS") and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
("HKIS"), and have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of properties in the relevant location. The valuation, which conforms
to the Hong Kong Guidance Notes on “the Valuation of Property Assets (5
Edition May 2003)" published by RICS and “the Valuation Standards (First
Edition 2005) on Properties” published by HKIS, was arrived at by reference to

market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

If land and buildings had not been revalued, they would have been included in
these financial statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation of
HK$9,461,000 (2004: HK$9,712,000).

At 30 April 2005, the net book values of motor vehicles of the Group include
HK$978,000 in respect of assets held under finance leases. At 30 April 2004,
the net book values of motor vehicles and gondolas and related equipment of
the Group include HK$1,401,000 and HK$2,527,000 in respect of assets held

under finance loans, respectively.
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15. SRS GOODWILL
REE
THE GROUP
FBT
HK$'000
A COST
R-ZZEWMERA—H At 1 May 2004 and 30 April 2005
E_ZETRFMA=+H 4,332
55 AMORTISATION
R-ZZEZEWMERA—A At 1 May 2004 760
FAXH Charge for the year 434
R_ZEZERFMA=+H At 30 April 2005 1,194
BREEE NET BOOK VALUE
RZZEZTRAFMA=1H At 30 April 2005 3,138
R-ZZEZEMEMA=+H At 30 April 2004 3,572

BB Ty A B SRR E G AT R B B - F g - Goodwill is amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated useful

life of 10 years.

16. | RMBE AR 2R INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
VNN
THE COMPANY

—ETRF —TTWEF

2005 2004

FERT FHBT

HK$'000 HK$'000

JEETMRRGD - RNAE Unlisted shares, at cost 4 4

JE W2 Bt 8 A~ R FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 22,652 22,086

22,656 22,090
BB AR RBELSEERARREE - RAFER The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-free. The
ETEREERRS T ZEAREREEHR Company has agreed not to demand repayment of the balance within the next
it BEARERRRIERD - twelve months from the balance sheet date and accordingly, the amounts are

shown as non-current.
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16. KB A 7] 2 B s

pir

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

BE_TTAFMA=THAEZMBLR (5K

BREMERB)FENT :

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, which are limited liability companies, at
30 April 2005 are as follows:

ENRRAEHRST
AL BERTRAR B,/ FERE A 2 EE G
Ty EA BA/ZRER Proportion of
Place of BEEKS Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ Form of fully paid up issued share capital/
ol PGIEE registration legal share capital/ registered capital TEEH
Name of subsidiary operations entity registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
=R CiF:3
Directly Indirectly
WLS (BVI) Limited RERRHE BRAH Lak 100% - RE#ER
British Virgin Limited 38510% 7T Investment holding
Islands company Ordinary
US$38,510
EEEXERARA 0 BRAR EReli - 100% @ BEERS
10,0007 7T
CGraceman Industrial Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Manufacturing of plastic ties
company HK$10,000
RERRERAF Bk BRAF LR - 100% HEBKIER
10,0007 7T
Skylon International Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Gondolas rental
company HK$10,000
REEHLEHERAA B BRARF Rl - lo0%  REEHRY
10,0007 7T
Skyway Transport & Trading Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of transportation
Company Limited company HK$10,000 services
EEIRBRARA 0 BRAR EReli = 0% HHIES
1,226,667 7T B5 %Kit HE
R#ERHER
RERGEEN 2 Z%
R E R
Sinogain Engineering Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Trading, design, sales,
company HK$1,226,667 repairs and maintenance

of gondolas and parapet
railings and access equipment
installation and

maintance services
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16. BT B 4 B 2 M 2 (o)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ARARBEEHRT
TMARL ERTRARE BRE/EMERZEELH
TE EA BA/FRER Proportion of
Place of BERES Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ Form of fully paid up issued share capital/
ol PNGIEE registration legal share capital/ registered capital TERH
Name of subsidiary operations entity registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
& B
Directly Indirectly
EEIRZERRAA BB ARAT ERR - 100% REEBSOBRH
100,003 7T
WLS Contractors Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of management
company HK$100,000 contracting services
EMR ORF) T2 R BRAA &K - 100% EHIRRER
BRAF 250002F9 7T
WLS (Macau) Engineering Macau Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Company Limited company MOP25,000
EREERERAA BB ARAT Edelis - 100% IR{LEER RS
100,000 7T
Wui Loong Consultancy Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of consultancy
Company Limited company HK$100,000 services
EREEERA A 0 BRAA &R - 100% MEREA
100,000/ 7T
Wui Loong Holdings Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Property holding
Company Limited company HK$100,000
EEMEER AT BB BARAT Edelis - 100% EWMIREES
28T EOERE
BRZRE
BT R (M 2E)
1,900,000/ 7t
Wui Loong Scaffolding Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Works Company Limited company HK$2 and property investment
Non-voting
deferred (Note)
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16. MM AT 22 @  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
AARBEEHRT
TMAL BERTRARE BRAE/EMERZEELH
TEw EA BA/ZMER Proportion of
Place of BERKS Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ Form of fully paid up issued share capital/
ol PNGIEEE registration legal share capital/ registered capital TERH
Name of subsidiary operations entity registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
& CiE:3
Directly Indirectly
EEZGHRERAF B ABERA ERR - 100% AEMIEEH
100,003 7T
Wui Loong System Scaffolds Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Company Limited company HK$100,000
ER e & B R AR 0 BRAA L - 100% BREFEH
100,000/ 7T
Wui Luen Engineering Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Suspended ceiling business
Company Limited company HK$100,000
PBEREABTRAA HE AR AHE MNEBE AU - 100%  IRMLEER R
140,000% T
People’s Wholly-owned Registered Provision of consultancy
Republic foreign capital services
of China enterprise US$140,000

Kiat - ERFEECRIFIEABEZARS - ERHE
BREAGHEG FRE - MERERNBEEZREE
SHPEIEMFBEE (R LMBEEFHRT
RAREBRFTE ABB1,000000 ETEZE
BEEN—FERRIN) o

RERFEREAERE - SHEQRAMERTE
AR E S

b

o

ERIFEARBEFTRRIEFEAEE RGN
BEZAEEWB AR - EFR & E AN
RAZHBHELSRBEBBRITE

Note: The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend or
vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return of
capital in a winding-up (other than one half of the balance of such assets after the
sum of HK$100,000 billion has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary
shares of the Company in such winding-up).

None of the subsidiaries had any debt security outstanding at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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17. REE NF 2= INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
A%

THE GROUP
—geEF _—TEN4F
2005 2004
FET FHE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
MFEEEMNTE Share of net assets 138 117
JFE U Bt & N B 2 FRIB Amounts due from associates 214 27
352 144

RZZEZRFMA=1H  AEERTIHER At 30 April 2005, the Group had interests in the following associates:

AR R
AEBFFE BT
AL IR 2 2 H & L i
*BEBERX R Proportion of
Form of Place of i i B 43 38 Bl nominal value of
AREH business incorporation/  Class of issued share capital  ¥HHHE
Name of company  structure operation shares held held by the Group  Nature of business
BM Technologies A K 32 RERLBEE ETBER 36.36% IREER
Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary Investment holding
Islands
Wui Chun Building &t B¢ 3z BB L iE R 36.36%  IREHERRERS
Material Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of repair and
maintenance services
B ENR 2 RERAEERARER - XEEE The amounts due from associates are unsecured and interest-free. The Group
AE ERAEE B+ EAAREREERK has agreed not to demand repayment of the balances within the next twelve
Ut BAREGERERD - months from the balance sheet date and accordingly, the amounts are shown

as non-current.
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18. REFEFER 2 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
* =<
AEE

THE GROUP
—2TEF —TTHEHF
2005 2004
FTERT FHBT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MFEEEMNTE Share of net assets 216 98

JE W K [R] 22 51 B 28 2 SRR Amounts due from jointly

controlled entities 903 -
1,119 98
JE A 3[R %2 1 B B8 2 FRIE Amount due to a jointly controlled entity 804 -

At 30 April 2005, the Group had interests in the following jointly controlled

7 entity:
ANRFAEE BT
IR 2K 2 B L )
ML, Proportion of
EBEBERX R nominal value of
Form of Place of B IR 40 3 R issued share capital
AREH business incorporation/  Class of indirectly held by %% &
Name of company structure operation share held the Company  Nature of business
MKP-Wui Loong EEii s Ava SR P R AR 49%  HEEMZR RS
System Scaffolds  Incorporated Malaysia Ordinary Promoting scaffolding
Sdn Bhd (“MKP") system
Wui Foo Engineering = fiff ik 32 B A 50%  fREeF AR
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of climbing
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18. | RAREGHERZ
B

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

FENK RSB R 2 RIBAEER - 28 AER
EEFH - BEREL  ZEFBRAREREER
MEE T {8 A A EE I E i 5 EIE R B FRIE -

ENARZEHER ZFASERR 28 ARR

M-ZBZREME=+H » MKPHARBIEER
RE B A IEE 46240008 T (ST PU4F -
624,0005% 7T) T MKPYE AR H & -

The amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the
amounts will not be repayable within twelve months from the balance sheet

date and are therefore shown as non-current.

The amount due to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

At 30 April 2005, MKP has not yet commenced business. The Group has
undertaken to contribute investment cost of HK$624,000 (2004: HK$624,000)

to MKP as shareholder's loan.

19. 7E INVENTORIES
RE
THE GROUP
—gERF _—TIMF
2005 2004
FTER FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 553 213
LR Finished goods 1,457 204
2,010 417

FrBEFEBERAIEE
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HE-—ZTRFEPA=+HILFZ  For the year ended 30 April 2005

20. FE Ut BR X

TRADE RECEIVABLES

AEEENEFPREZEETDIREFHZRES
a2 IR ERG  BUBRFKARE D AT 40

The credit terms given to each individual customer were in accordance with

the payment terms stipulated in the relevant tenders or contracts. The aged

N analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
rE
THE GROUP
—geEF —TTNS
2005 2004
FTHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0—90H 0 — 90 days 21,148 21,714
91— 180H 91 — 180 days 2,533 5,039
181—270H 181 — 270 days 898 1,754
@270 Over 270 days 874 1,894
25,453 30,401
21. W (EN)ZEE AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR
SN ITREIEE CONTRACT WORK
rE
THE GROUP
—REHF —TENEF
2005 2004
FTHERT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
NEBEBERIR Contracts in progress at the balance
sheet date:
25 Aa BB AN EL Contract costs incurred to date plus
AR B R A attributable profits less
recognised losses 269,365 163,503
B U R e W S SR8 Progress payments received and receivable (253,554) (142,962)
15,811 20,541
ERERBEI TR Analysed for reporting purposes as:
EREF & IIENE Amount due from customers for
contract work 20,956 29,741
EREP&HTERE Amount due to customers for
contract work (5,145) (9,200)
15,811 20,541
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22. | BEAERAREM TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
FE 15 BR X
15 Bl 35 I EL A 8 A< BR R B 4E P T R 5K 9,411,000 Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of HK$9,411,000
BT (ZZ TN - 9,228000% 7T) + HERER DT (2004: HK$9,228,000) with an aged analysis as follow:
W
KE
THE GROUP
—E2E2REF —TTNEF
2005 2004
FTER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
0—90H 0 — 90 days 7,002 7923
91— 180H 91 — 180 days 2,260 641
181—270H 181 — 270 days - 120
181—270H Over 270 days 149 544
9,411 9,228
23. & O EE OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
REANTRRE
BERALH Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
ZEERRF _TTMF ZBTIF _TITNF
2005 2004 2005 2004

TER TET TR THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

S 3 THE GROUP
—£R Within one year 501 932 485 878
F_EZFLEN(BEEEMTF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 13 514 19 500
514 1,446

B RRBEER Less: future finance charges (10) (68)
HEAEZHE Present value of lease obligations 504 1,378 504 1378
B R—FREH Less: Amount due within

X2 HE one year shown

(RRBEEETIIR) under current liabilities (485) (878)
R—F RN 258 Amount due after one year 19 500
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23, | MABNESE o

puit}

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (Continued)

AREEZBRABARMEBROEESETRE - BHf
TEaREMERE - THHEFHA=F - HE
“ETRFNA=THIEFE  FHEREESF
FEBEE - METDIREHBHEE - FEHLD
B EREREE  BXWERNAESERGIL
ZHE e

AEBzBERORENLBAARCTEHEEES
A -

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles and gondolas and
related equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is three years.
For the year ended 30 April 2005, the average effective borrowing rate was
6% per annum. Interest rates were fixed at the contract date. All leases are on
a fixed repayment basis and no arrangement has been entered into for

contingent rental payments.

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's

charge over the leased assets.

24. | RITEX

BANK BORROWINGS

rE
THE GROUP
—geEF _—TEN4E
2005 2004
FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITEX Bank overdrafts 8,682 16,416
RITER Bank loans 23,458 25,663
32,140 42,079
SaRil Analysed as:
BHER Secured 6,897 17,023
4 3 4R Unsecured 25,243 25,056
32,140 42,079
ERARAT HRE R The borrowings are repayable as follows:
BERSI—FNR On demand or within one year 28,251 35,715
—FEMF More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 3,889 6,364
32,140 42,079
W R —FANEEEZRIEA Less: Amount due within one year shown
(RREEEE TR under current liabilities (28,251) (35,715)
R—FZEI B Z2HKEA Amount due after one year 3,889 6,364
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25. IE 3E % 18 DEFERRED TAX

THRAEERAFERBEFENBRZ EE The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the

BREREEER (BE) ARGHEES Group and movements thereon during the current and prior years.
i1
BB E
BEBE Accelerated
Tax tax Hit st
losses depreciation Others Total

TER FTERT TER FTHERT
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

IR 2 8] As previously reported - (1,731) - (1,731)
EEAE (M) Prior year adjustment (Note 2) - (377) - (377)
mE5| As restated - (2,108) - (2,108)
FEXM Charge for the year 678 325 416 1,419

MEREPH s TE Effect on change in tax rate - (198) - (198)
RZZZMNFNA=1H At 30 April 2004 678 (1,981) 416 (887)
FEHER) X H (Credit) charge for the year (673) (462) 220 (915)
BEFETERE Underprovision in prior years 331 (313) (410) (392)
RZZEZRFMA=1H At 30 April 2005 336 (2,756) 226 (2,194)

NR-ZTZZREMA=+8  A&EEZAFAFKE At 30 April 2005, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$9,427,000 (2004:

518 59,427,000 7T (ZZZ P4 : 13,427,000/ HK$13,427,000) available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax has
JC) ¢ AR SR c BEHBERZEE been recognised in respect of tax losses of HK$1,920,000 (2004:
821,920,000 7T (ZZZ U4 : 3,874,000) Fi1E HK$3,874,000) of such tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
BB T AR - BRREBRRIEF B - K in respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$7,507,000 (2004: HK$9,553,000)
L FE 8 2 7,507,0008 T (Z T PUF ¢ due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may be
9,553,000/& 7T) B IR B IR R IRIEBITH B EE » Bl carried forward indefinitely.

REEAERRALE -
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26. REBRKESEE

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

REBFBREGD AREFEETRE THRAE
BRBELERFZEREBES THER MR ILER
BRSNS — B - BAFIRE TR &K
Fre MRBFERME - WRRAEERIAGER
SR EARR - BRRNGEIREAEE MR -
AEE I EBBERNEE - (ERERFISRASER
F o

RIEEEERBERERZRELT

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged to make
lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain circumstances to
certain employees who have completed at least five years of service with the
Group. The amount payable is dependent on the employee's final salary and
years of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group's
MPF Scheme that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The

Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows:

rE
THE GROUP

—geEF -TENF

2005 2004

TET FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

F1 At beginning of the year 856 920

FNFTIERRINE B Additional provision made during the year 528 556
B ARE Utilisation of provision (872) (620)

Fie At end of the year 512 856
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27. N SHARE CAPITAL
%17 & B
Number £ 80
of shares Amount
FEx
HK$'000
BREE0.01ETT Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
2 &R
JETE ¢ Authorised:
R-ZTEENFR_FTTRAFNA=1H At 30 April 2004 and 2005 800,000,000 8,000
BETERER Issued and fully paid:
R-EENFER-_EERFMNA=+H At 30 April 2004 and 2005 457,500,000 4,575
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28. B E

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

BEAARAN_ET—F+—A=-+HBHEAZ
B8l (T8l - ARARE=g ([EFg])
A2ENERBEARRASEETANBE AR 228
’BE (BEARRKEAMMERBNIT - FEH
TRBIIFNTES) ZERBRE  UREBARQ
Akt FEEHNRBBHEEREERES - B
BT B J AR B)E fa] H b BB AR A 5t &R 0 if R
1IE 2 FTE B IRMEREAT(E T T AT 2 IRID 428K -
FERTE 2 BHREIT - NMFEBBARD R TR E
TR A 3000 ©

R ER+ — B A SR B RS T B 2 AR
1 (RIEE T8 R4 R 1T B B RAE) TE BT RIS
FEFT2RSROBE - TEBBEAATDET
BABEZ 1% BEQARISEEL OB
B R BB A R AT i TR AR o 1 S
FRRESANKBAAB ST -

RBEDHEFSER  ETSER@FHER
2B WS cETIRIEER B8
BREXHBEREZ AEBIAERBRERARA
ABRMOREIFRRZKWHE - b)RER L ERE
HERIEEE % B - szt BIFTH 25 T&RMHE
B Z2REESEHARXLBEREZ B AR E:
B R 32 P A B RPTRA R AR EIZRR
ZFEWTE  ROBROHEE  =FBARSER
=

=

RIFFTEZ R BREAREZSERANSAA
RAZ AR AR 28 MBOITE - EREETE
ZGEFR O AT RBRE RN SRARNR D
Bz BRABETF - BEFE 26K I
BERNVGARSARRREHRIVAEDRRA
BOHTEEREZ —RERE -

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 25
November 2001 (the “Option Scheme"), for the primary purpose of providing
incentive to directors and eligible employees, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) may, at its absolute discretion, offer full-time
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not,
subject to the conditions set out in the Option Scheme, exceed 30% of the

issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued on the exercise of
options granted and to be granted (included both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total issued share
capital of the Company in issue, unless (a) a shareholder circular is dispatched
to the shareholders; and (b) the shareholders approve the grant of the options
in excess of the limit referred to herein. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is

payable on acceptance of each grant.

The subscription price was determined by the Board, but may not be less than
the highest of (a) the closing price of the Company's shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option Scheme apply, on
the date of the Board proposing such grant; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the Company’s shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option
Scheme apply, the average of the closing prices of the Company's shares on
the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the Board proposing such

grant; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms of
the Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board to
each grantee that the period within which the option may be exercised shall
not be more than 10 years from the date on which the offer of the grant of the
options is made in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme. There is
no general requirement on the minimum period for which an option must be
held or the performance target which must be achieved before an option can

be exercised under the terms of the Option Scheme.
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28. | BRETE® SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
AERRAES T —F+—HA - t+HARE The Option Scheme became effective for a period of ten years commencing
BRTE - from 25 November 2001, the date of adoption.

FREES (BRERESF) IFARABREZZ85F Details of movements in the Company's share options held by employees

BEWT : (including directors) are as follows:
R-ZZENF R=-ZZHF
ERA-H mA=+AH
TRAR BREHE FERRH ERTEH BREHE
(BfEEEMA) fTEEE Number of Granted Cancelled Number of
—EEEF RUEAH Exercisable period Exercise  share options during during  share options
2005 Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2004 the year the year at 30.4.2005
BT
HK$
52 —EEHF —Z%= 0.381 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
Directors RAZ+—AH EAZTNRE
21 May 2002 —2ENE
AA=t+8
28 May 2003 to
27 May 2009
i3 “TTRE 0.094 11,400,000 - (2,000,000 9,400,000
Z“AAH ZRA+t=RHE
5 February 2004 —2——F
ZA+—H
12 February 2005 to

11 February 2011

29,400,000 - (2,000,000) 27,400,000
B8 —EECf —EE=F 0.381 9,870,000 - (4,590,000) 5,280,000
Employees AA=t-H TAZ+N\RE
“ZENFRAZTLR
21 May 2002 28 May 2003 to
27 May 2009
k3 —EERE 0,094 1,490,000 - (640,000) 850,000
—“AAE ZR+=H%
“F-—%-At-H
5 February 2004 12 February 2005 to
11 February 2011
11,360,000 - (5,230,000) 6,130,000
40,760,000 - (7.230,000) 33,530,000
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28. BREREw

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

RZZE=F RZZTMF
hA—H MA=+H
TR BlREHR FARN FRTH BlREER
(BEERMA) T fE Number of Granted Cancelled Number of
—TTNE  KEHBH Exercisable period Exercise share options during during share options
2004 Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2003 the year the year at 30.4.2004
I
HK$
g% —ET-F —EE= 0381 18,100,000 - (100000) 18,000,000
Directors )=y el = AAZTNRE
21 May 2002 —ZENE
AA=t++H
28 May 2003 to
27 May 2009
—TTOE —TTRE 0.094 = 11,400,000 = 11,400,000
—“RAH “A+tZHE
5 February 2004 —T——F
—At+—A
12 February 2005 to
11 February 2011
18,100,000 11,400,000 (100,000) 29,400,000
E8 -+ k2 —EE=F 0381 10,110,000 - (240,000) 9,870,000
Employees )=y el = AAZTN\RE
21 May 2002 “ZENE
)= oty o o =
28 May 2003 to
27 May 2009
“EETME “ZTRF 0,094 - 1,620,000 (130,000) 1,490,000
—R&A —At=RHZ
5 February 2004 —E——F
“A+—H
12 February 2005 to
11 February 2011
10,110,000 1,620,000 (370,000) 11,360,000
28,210,000 13,020,000 (470,000) 40,760,000

R-ZZBERFENA=+H - REFEAEERE LY
RITEZEREFBZROEKBEARRRZAE
ERTERMNEB 273%(— P04 : 8.50%) °

At 30 April, 2005, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the scheme was 7.3% (2004: 8.5%)

of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.
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28. BRESE W

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

RHzBERESANRL A BEF7ARER -
BE_TERFNA=THLFEARRL 2B
REEERAMERES (BRES) WIZBKE

567 TT °

ERLBREZ VBT ESEEBREETEE -
TRENARASAEEZEEREBR - MNF
ARz BREEBET ISR RAERAER - 1
BREETEE - AR AR ET 2R
RO EELEASBEINRA - I HERTE
EBRBRDEER O ZBRLENROEER - ©
171 B BT R AN B s 3 2 BB AR | 0 R R AT {2

B S 5 R T P M BR RS 8% o

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 7 days from the date of
grant. No options were granted during the year ended 30 April 2005, total
consideration received during the year ended 30 April 2004 from employees

(including directors) for taking up the options granted amounted to HK$56.

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the Company's
or the Group's balance sheet until time as the options are exercised, and no
charge is recognised in the income statement in respect of the value of options
granted in the year. Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares
issued are recorded by the Company as additional share capital at the nominal
value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over the
nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share premium
account. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are

deleted from the register of outstanding options.

29. LEBRRESR

MINORITY INTEREST

ARR—HERRZ P BRRABHEZNE
REDEBRZ EBIEEE - Bt - DERRER
BERAPIBERRER 2 BERGEEEAR
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30. | f#f& RESERVES
R 88 35 F
& 13 % 1B (&5 #t)
Share Retained @t
premium profits (deficit) Total
FHET FHExT FHExT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PN THE COMPANY
R-ZBZE=FHA—H At 1 May 2003 17,463 960 18,423
REEFEEEFHE Net loss for the year - (1,163) (1,163)
RZZEZTWMEMNA=+H At 30 April 2004 17463 (203) 17,260
F [ % F F R Net profit for the year = 2,553 2,553
R-ZEZERFWMA=+AH At 30 April 2005 17463 2,350 19,813

RRAA 2 AR FEERGRERRB &R
BERASHS A RE (KER]) £328 * ARAEZ
A&7 i (B AT IR A A el A E R KA R4 Bl 2 3
ARERMNFREZ DIRSKRE - HEEEZNAS
KSR IR ER - RABMDA R A B EKRESR
BENEIPEYR -HR_TETERAFWA=1+HE ' &
AR AR T AR 2 #1575 19,813,0008 7T (=
T TP : 17,260,000/ J0) ©

The Company's reserves available for distribution represent the share premium
and retained profits. Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 32 of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its
Memorandum of Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The Company's reserves
available for distribution to shareholders at 30 April 2005 amounted to
HK$19,813,000 (2004: HK$17,260,000).
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31. | EN—EWBAF

MIE

AMOUNT DUE TO A SUBSIDIARY

RN —FHfBARFARERAREE K
AERETERNEERRT T —ERARER

AEEEREE - EUt - ZARIBTIINEERS -

The amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured and interest-free. The subsidiary
has agreed not to demand repayment of the balance within the next twelve
months from the balance sheet date and accordingly, the amounts is shown as

non-current.

32. FEHRBEERS

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

RERN  AEBEREETZREBRE R - WA

HFEEE - 88 A {E4695,0007% 7T °

During the year ended 30 April 2004, the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements in respect of assets with a total capital value at the inception of
the leases of HK$695,000.

33, | EEHEH

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

REER  AEBECERTIEEERAEEE

E—RIRTTRE 2R

At the balance sheet date, the Group has pledged the following assets as

securities against general banking facilities granted to the Group:

rE

THE GROUP
—EERF —ETMEF
2005 2004
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
& Investment property 5,100 4,300
T RAEF Land and buildings 6,700 5,614
RE Motor vehicles 978 1,591
PAIIES Gondolas - 2,524
RITF R Bank deposits - 500
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34.

HAREE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@ R-EEREMAB=+A AEEEUT
HAREE -

@

(i)

iir)

AAAl—EE2ENBAREEMRXE
BRAR (DEREMSE]) %3 —HB ML
7] Bt B8 AR 2 H AR 5 HK 1033739
LA % 116 58 ) 12 =5 1l 48 2 5 e MR B 242
HORR R - EERARMBEIZESRR
HAREE 2 FHAMR N R EBC S &
BREBERVE  REARANZER
FtEREE - ERMEE TSR EI0
EERFIEHMAL  BX RS
R = B B TR E B R N TR
oz ARBEEMRIR -

HREZRR/A LDERTHHAEE
ZHBORRAL EEBARE - HEER
MERWEE RELEE -

HEEMRIRERRBERESEH
AREEFRITEL 2 BAOREE MR
1711 556,000/ 7 (Z T Z Y4 :
1,417,000% 7T) 2 R B EIRE °

AREI R —EEZ2EHE R B RRIT
1R =3 492,000,0007% 7T % 2,589,000
BT (CETWF - T) 2EER
1ER— 2 EWEB D I EE —MRIRTT
BMEZER R-_TETRFMA=1
B HI2EWNBARBAZEEE
#17/4,589,000/8 T (Z T TG : &) o
REBRMZERRIERERB LA
RERETFHFZEWB AR ZME—
BE o

(a) At 30 April 2005, the Group had the following contingent liabilities:

(ii)

(iil)

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Wui Loong Scaffolding
Works Company Limited (“WL Scaffolding “), was subject to a legal
action intended to be brought by another scaffolding company to
revoke a standard patent No. HK1033739 and to have the entry of
the patent in the Register of Patents be expunged. The directors
are of the view that the potential impact on the financial position
and the business operations of the Group resulting from the
revocation of the standard patent is not material since the
invalidation of the standard patent does not prevent the Group
from continuing to work the scaffolding structure as particularly
described in the standard patent although WL Scaffolding will not

be able to sue others for infringement of the standard patent.

As the directors are of the opinion that the above legal action
would not have any significant impact on the financial position of
the Group, no provision was considered necessary by the directors

at the balance sheet date.

The Group provided counter indemnities amounting to HK$556,000
(2004: HK$1,417,000) to banks for surety bonds issued by the
banks in respect of scaffolding works and mobile cleaning system

contracts.

The Company and one of its wholly owned subsidiaries provided
corporate guarantees to the extent of HK$2,000,000 and
HK$2,589,000 (2004: Nil) to banks to secure general banking
facilities granted to a non-wholly owned subsidiary, respectively. At
30 April 2005, the facilities of HK$4,589,000 (2004: Nil) was only
utilised by the non-wholly owned subsidiary. The guarantees given
by the Group were the only financial assistance given by the non-
wholly owned subsidiary’s shareholders to the non-wholly owned

subsidiary.
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34, HABE @

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

b ARAMRTRVYBEBRESERD
108,890,000/ 7T (ZZZ U4 : 103,375,000
HBIT) 2 R EER - (ERE THE A RER
—RBITREZER - [WBRARZZET
FFNA=ZTHEDAZRELBN A
37,753,000/ 7T (ZZZ W4 : 43,457,000
EIT) °

(b) The Company provided corporate guarantees to the extent of
HK$108,890,000 (2004: HK$103,375,000) to banks and financial
institutions to secure general banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries. The total facilities utilised by the subsidiaries at 30 April
2005 amounted to HK$37,753,000 (2004: HK$43,457,000).

35. o 7

LITIGATION

ARA2EMBRREERRGWRERAR (DE
BERLZ])  AREREF - BEAEREH A
2,000,000/ L2 SE R RN 22 5 & 4 A iH AR S AT
HIR o RAEAEERI LR - YESERR
BMENPRBRIRRE  ERXAREREE - &
HERNETREX M RIFEFER AR

BN R R TRRIL AR FA 2 5 R - EIOEE R
MeBR BEFRRUERMAZERBIEYHAE
BZHBRRBREATRTE -
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A wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Wui Loong System Scaffolds
Company Limited (“WL System Scaffolds”), had instituted legal proceedings
against the main contractor for the outstanding amount under a contract for
system formwork installation of HK$2 million. The main contractor filed a
defence and also counterclaimed for loss and damage on grounds of alleged
breach of contract by WL System Scaffolds, which is denied by it. The parties
are at the stage of making mutual discovery and other interlocutory

applications.

While the outcome of the proceedings cannot be estimated with certainty at
this stage, based on legal advice obtained, the directors are of the opinion that
the outcome of the action would not have a material adverse impact on the

financial position of the Group.
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36. KRERQYFRIE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

A& EE D ABEA

REER - ARERETABEHEKLLHON T
M BEN 2 RRKERERBEALENT ¢

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

follows:
TEE
THE GROUP
—geEF -TENF
2005 2004
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 1,423 1,179
E_FEZERLF (BREEEWNE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 183 830
1,606 2,009

BERORARETRFERAIESZES -
AOUTFHFH=FHT - B FHUR=FENE
SRR

AEBESDHBEA

REH B - AR ERES T RARERER

HAIZAHK

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of its office
premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for an average term of three

years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years.
The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the

following future minimum lease payments:

REE

THE GROUP
—Z2IRF —EEE
2005 2004
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F RN Within one year 58 138
E_FEZFELF (BEEEMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive - 61
58 199

HORBESYAMFEFRRE T REE -

Leases are negotiated and rental are fixed for terms of two years.
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36. | RIKBHRETE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

H_ZZZEFA+ A —HE  AEEEREKAF
HEBMBRARMEAERBE T2 MBRES

MEFrEAHBYEREATRE 2 ERMHK
FHEl - RIEmESE  AEEREESSAR
108 i A TEEIAPIPT AR FE 12 R B A 2 5904 7%
sHEIE AEL R - BA1,0008 T AR - BEINZ
RAEERIED -

E:

RERE W as R 1Bk 2 425K 281,200,000/ 7T (==
T PO : 1,561,000/ 70) I8 A S B RRTE S E(E

#

Sl

N

& o

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has arranged for all qualifying
employees of the Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries to join the MPF
Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, both the Group and the
employees make monthly contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation, subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter

contributions are voluntary.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement of HK$ 1,200,000
(2004: HK$1,561,000) represents contributions payable to the MPF Scheme
by the Group.

37. BEALXRS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

N REBFZATRS :

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions:

B 5 —EETREF —ZETMEF
Notes 2005 2004
5 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
(a) 82— RIZHERZRS (@) Transactions with a jointly
controlled entity
B IR 2 2 I B 2 Subcontracting expenses of
scaffolding services i 1,299 -
2 A A Subcontracting income [ 194 -
b)) BE—FRBEERF LR (b) Transactions with a related
company
ENEE T -—KBEERA Rental expense paid to a
related company i, i - 278

84 ERZRAR2AT | WLS Holdings Limited




PR AR BT AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
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AY ——

37. HAEALIRS RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Mt - Notes:
0) RS TIR BB EBBIERIE—REFEGRTET ° (i)  The transactions were carried out on normal commercial terms and in ordinary

course of business.
(i) MHEeRAXDEMETHE - (i) The rental expense was charged at market rate.
(i) ANRREFEOLKEERBEBZ TREERA (i) Mr. So Yu Shing and Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca, directors of the Company, have
BHEE= R - beneficial interest in the related company.

HASBEBREA T ZERFBRINGEEER Details of the balances with the Group's related parties are set out in the
BEREMFEI7RIS consolidated balance sheet and in notes 17 and 18.
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E 4 RESULTS
BZENA=1+HLEFE
Year ended 30 April
—EERFE —TTONF —_TT=F —TT_F T —F
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
THER FHT FHT T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(E75)) (&%)
(restated) (restated)
LR Turnover 176,393 135,237 146,474 175,848 158,885
8H & B AR Cost of sales (143,833) (116,091) (117,053) (140,766) (127,764)
E A Gross profit 32,560 19,146 29,421 35,082 31,121
Hth 48 & A Other operating income 651 627 849 971 524
THAX Administrative expenses (25,911) (28,140) (26,655) (19,779) (15,462)
KEWMERATER Increase in fair value of
238 investment property 800 500 - - -
T R F Surplus on revaluation of
B AR land and buildings 1,216 - - - -
H 48 2 5 2 Other operating expenses - - - (125) @
A (E518) Profit (loss) from operations 9,316 (7.867) 3,615 16,149 16,092
BM%5E M Finance costs (2,050) (1,731) (1,224) (2,010) (3,219)
FEAE B = AR A Share of results of associates 21 (83) - - =
JE fi $E [R) 22 il Share of results of jointly
BRXES controlled entities 113 - - = =
B A0 A& B (E18) Profit (loss) before taxation 7,400 (9,681) 2,391 14,139 12,873
18 Taxation (1,278) 862 1,474 (2,306) (2,200)
Kt D HREMEZSA]  Profit (loss) before minority
Al (B 18) interest 6,122 (8,819) 3,865 11,833 10,673
DEIR R = Minority interest (42) 245 290 = =
ANEE @A (EE) F5 Net profit (loss) for the year 6,080 (8,574) 4,155 11,833 10,673
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Financial Summary

BEERBE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

REA=+HI1
At 30 April
—EERF —FTTNOF —TT=F =TT -_F =TT —F
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
FExT FET FAETT FAET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(E51) (&=7)
(restated) (restated)
BEE Total assets 102,505 110,957 103,268 106,667 89,691
FES=RE Total liabilities (58,957) (73,531) (56,616) (64,017) (76,981)
DER R E Minority interest 523 565 290 - -
FRES Shareholders’ funds 44,071 37991 46,942 42,650 12,710
Wit - Notes:

ARARIRZZET—FLA-+=-HREREHST
itk - WA RRR=_ZEE—F+—HA=+H
HEzeRERMAM - ARFAREEBEHTKE
RAREER ZZRAT  TR_FFT—F+— A
—t=BRBEX -

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands on 23 July 2001 and became
the holding company of the Group with effect from 23 November 2001 upon
completion of the group reorganisation as set out in the Company's prospectus
dated 30 November 2001.

AEEBZE_TZ—FMA=THILFEZER 2. The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2001 and the balance sheet
RASER_ZT—FNA=TAZEEASREX " of the Group as at 30 April 2001 have been prepared on a merger basis and are
THREHELERE  UEHEERARR-ZT— extracted from the Company's prospectus dated 30 November 2001.
F+—A=THABEZERERE -

REMNBEE ST A S E M2 ST EHAERFE34 3. The 2002 results, asset and liabilities shown above have been restated, following
e P TR _FEEREES EEHAR the adoption of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 34 “Employee
ETEY - AREY —_TE-FLBREFITE benefits” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
B BAmAEES - "HKICPA"). The comparative information for 2001 has not been restated as it is

impractical to do so.
REMNBE BT ASE M2 BB ST 2ERFE 40 4. The 2004 results, asset and liabilities shown above have been restated, following

iR LI —ETEMERRAER  BEERAE
ETFES - —TR=FH A ZLREFLTE
ERT

the adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standards 40 issued by the HKICPA and
the corresponding adjustment in respect of the deferred tax impact. The
comparative information for 2003 or before has not been restated.
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(b) ®)
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THAT:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of shareholders of
WLS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Rooms 1001-10086,
10th Floor, Southmark, 11 Yip Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong
Kong on 30 August 2005 (Tuesday) at 2:30 p.m. to transact the following

ordinary businesses:

to receive, consider and approve the audited consolidated financial
statements and the reports of the directors and auditors for the year
ended 30 April 2005;

to re-elect directors and to authorise the board of directors of the

Company (the “Directors”) to fix their remuneration;

to declare a final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2005 of HK0.5

cent per share;

to re-appoint the Company's auditors and to authorise the Directors to

fix their remuneration;

and, as special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolutions with or without amendments as ordinary resolutions:

Ordinary Resolutions

subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”), the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant
Period (as defined below) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with the unissued shares in the capital of the
Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such powers be and the same

is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise the
Directors during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the exercise of such

powers after the end of the Relevant Period;



©
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RREFASES

Notice of Annual General Meeting

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant
to options or otherwise), issued or dealt with by the Directors
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as defined below);
or (i) the exercise of any option under the share option scheme
of the Company; or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment and issue of shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on shares in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company in force from time to time, shall not

exceed the aggregate of:

(i)  20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue on the date of the passing of this

resolution; and

(ity  (if the Directors are so authorised by a separate ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company) the
nominal amount of any share capital of the Company
repurchased by the Company subsequent to the passing of
this resolution (up to a maximum equivalent to 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the date of the passing of this
resolution), and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of

this resolution shall be limited accordingly; and
for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the date of the passing

of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
or any other applicable laws of the Cayman Islands to be
held; and

(i)  the date on which the authority given under this resolution
is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

—ZTHRFFHR | Annual Report 2005 89



BRRBFAEGES

Notice of Annual General Meeting

[BCE AR DIEREERTERNHEA
FIRIEE LS B BRI AR F 2R
H e B 458 AR RS E R AR
HHIRZ2HERRBRN - HIREH
ERBITRAERE M AR AT R
BOMEMES IEEEBERTH
IRFE K AR AR IE B B LASI ) (E 7 ]
EREBRE R AIMEMI R BB
T8 5 R 5 P HOE DI AR E BN AR
RHSREME - HXNEEEBRE Lt
ERISARE MAFERERRBISKE E
S EBER YRR ERIER - 1F
HERRMESEE R RHE ML
BE) o

6. BE: 6.

ERRBRO)BENORR T - —REE
GUHEA AR ESSNA FHRE GE
BEATXOTEARR—ESD - 1
BRMARXHMAR AR RIZERSKA
AABEMAELETELRBEESR
PEEBERZEe ((BEg]) RE
BBARZAARARBI R A AE
AEBAIZEMESRZHH 28
BEE  AIRRLETRA - AREA
BEIZ AR R P A B At AE 1tk 77 TEE B
EDEB - BEE AR

(@ @

KR BBBARZEZR ()R PT HHE e
EEBHEARROKRDEELRD
FHRBRARZRBBAHRRFE
BATRRAREEATE10% @ ORFER ()
B REMAZ RS

©) (b)

(© BMARF=RME - ©

B RAHAR 48 AR SR EE A e
ETH=FR KT B H A HRE

ARB TERRBFRAGHR

=

@

90 ERZRAR2AT | WLS Holdings Limited

THAT:

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the Company, or offer
or issue of warrants, options or other securities giving rights to
subscribe for shares open for a period fixed by the Directors to
eligible holders of shares in the Company on the register on a
fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of shares
(subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements, or having regard to any restrictions or obligations
under the laws of, or the requirements of, or the expense or delay
which may be involved in determining the existence or extent of
any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of, any jurisdiction outside Hong Kong or any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange outside Hong

Kong).

subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by the
Directors during the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all
powers of the Company to repurchase its shares on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited or
any other stock exchange outside Hong Kong on which the shares
of the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC") and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for such purpose, and otherwise
in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SFC, the GEM
Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the Company and all
other applicable laws in this regard, be and the same is hereby

generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which
may be repurchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) of this resolution during the Relevant Period shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the passing of this
resolution and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of this

resolution shall be limited accordingly;
for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the date of the passing
of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:
(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;
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(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
or any other applicable laws of the Cayman Islands to be
held; and

(i) the date on which the authority given under this resolution
is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
THAT:

subject to the ordinary resolutions nos. 5 and 6 above being duly
passed, the unconditional general mandate granted to the Directors to
exercise the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
unissued shares pursuant to resolution no. 5 above be and is hereby
extended by the addition thereto of an amount representing the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to
resolution no. 6 above, provided that such amount shall not exceed 10
percent of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of

the Company as at the date of the passing of this resolution.
THAT:

the refreshment of the scheme limit of the Company's share option
scheme adopted on 25 November 2001 and all other share option
schemes of the Company, up to 10% of the number of shares in the
capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution
(the "New Scheme Limit") be and is hereby approved and any director
of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do such acts and

execute such documents to effect the New Scheme Limit.

By order of the Board
WLS Holdings Limited
So Yu Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 July 2005
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Head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong:

Rooms 601-603 and 605

Southmark

No. 11 Yip Hing Street

Wong Chuk Hang

Aberdeen

Hong Kong

Notes:

1. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above
notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxy to attend and, subject to the
provisions of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, vote in his
stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. In order to be valid, the form of proxy must be deposited together with a power of
attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified
copy of that power or authority, at the office of the Company's Hong Kong branch
registrar, Tengis Ltd, at Ground Floor, BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than forty-eight hours before the time for
holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting.

3. In relation to the proposed resolutions nos. 5 and 7 above, approval is being
sought from the shareholders of the Company for the grant to the Directors of a
general mandate to authorise the allotment and issue of shares under the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors have no immediate plan to issue any new shares of
the Company other than shares which may fall to be issued under the share
option scheme of the Company or any scrip dividend scheme which may be
approved by shareholders of the Company.

4. In relation to the proposed resolution no. 6 above, the Directors wish to state that
they will exercise the powers conferred thereby to repurchase shares in
circumstances which they deem appropriate for the benefit of the shareholders of
the Company. An explanatory statement containing the information necessary to
enable the shareholders of the Company to make an informed decision to vote on
the proposed resolution as required by the GEM Listing Rules will be set out in a
separate document to be despatched to the shareholders of the Company with
the annual report for the year ended 30 April 2005.






